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Chairman’s Statement

B8

For the year ended 31 March, 2008, the Group’s sales
turnover increased by 44% to HKS$1,547,825,000 (2007:
HK$1,072,144,000) and the consolidated net profit decreased by
6% to HK$64,872,000 (2007: HK$69,095,000). Basic earnings
per share of the Group for the year ended 31 March, 2008 was
HK19.3 cents (2007: HK20.6 cents). The Board of Directors
has resolved to recommend at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting the payment of a final dividend of HK6 cents (2007:
HK7 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March, 2008.
Together with the interim dividend of HK4 cents per share paid
in January this year, the total dividend for the year ended 31
March, 2008 will be HK10 cents per share (2007: HK10 cents).
The dividend payout ratio for the year ended 31 March, 2008 is
52% (2007: 49%) which is consistent with our dividend policy
delivering a stable dividend return to our shareholders.

Business Review
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The Group manufactures a wide range of household electrical
appliances. During the year under review, turnover increased
by 44% over the previous reporting period to HK$1,547,825,000
as a result of increased turnover mainly from its existing
customers. Geographically, turnover to Europe increased by 45%
to HK$897,473,000 representing 58% of the Group’s turnover.
Turnover to America increased by 37% to HK$266,145,000
representing 17% of the Group’s turnover. Turnover to Asia
increased by 54% to HK$342,372,000 representing 22% of the
Group’s turnover. Turnover to other markets increased by 17% to
HK$41,835,000 representing 3% of the Group’s turnover.

During the year under review, we operated under enormous and
escalating difficulties. Adverse factors such as the appreciation
of RMB, the weakening of USD, the surge in energy and material
prices, the rising labour costs and operating costs in the PRC,
the unstable supply of electricity in the PRC had worsened at a
remarkably quick pace. The new Labour Contract Law which
came into effect on 1 January, 2008 in the PRC has further
increased our burden on the wages and welfare contributions for
our employees in PRC. On top of these, the reduction in the VAT
export refund and the widening of scope of restricted commodity
for processing trade in the PRC put further pressure on our
operating costs. All these unfavorable factors eroded our margins
significantly.
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Chairman’s Statement

B8

Business Review (continued)

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March, 2008 increased to
HK$203,623,000 (2007: HK$185,140,000). Gross profit margin
fell 4 percentage points from 17% to 13%. The drop in gross
margin was mainly due to the unfavorable business factors
mentioned above.

We continue to apply stringent cost control on all aspects of our
operation. Distribution costs increased by 24% to HK$33,445,000
(2007: HK$27,056,000). As a percentage to turnover, distribution
costs reduced from 2.5% to 2.2% compared to last year.
Administration expenses increased by 26% to HKS$111,612,000
(2007: HK$88,742,000). As a percentage to turnover,
administrative expenses reduced from 8.3% to 7.2% compared to
last year.

Other income decreased from HKS$5,273,000 last year to
HK$1,007,000 due to an amount of HK$3,909,000 exchange gain
booked last year. Interest expenses increased from HK$916,000
to HK$1,052,000 due to increase in bank loan for machineries.

Net investment income for the year ended 31 March, 2008 was
HKS$11,276,000 due to increase in net gain on foreign currency
forward contracts.

Net profit for the year decreased by 6% to HK$64,872,000
(2007: HK$69,095,000). Net profit margin decrease by 2
percentage points from 6% to 4%. However, if the net investment
income and revaluation increase of investment property of
HK$16,236,000 (2007: HK$6,012,000) were excluded, the net
profit margin would have dropped from 6% to 3%.

The Group actively promotes corporate social responsibility and
has been awarded the “Caring Company” logo by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Services in February 2008.
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Chairman’s Statement

B8

Prospects

Looking ahead, the business environment is expected to be even
more challenging and difficult. The operating difficulties such
as high energy and material prices, rising production costs in the
PRC, rising labour rates in the PRC, shortage of skilled labour
and strengthening of the Renminbi currency would still exist.

Oil price was around US$100 at the beginning of April 2008
and has now reached US$145 a barrel. In April 2008, minimum
wages in Huizhou increased more than 10% from RMB600
to RMB670 per month. Electricity supply was tight after the
unfortunate snowstorm and earthquake disasters in the PRC.
Starting January 2008, each of our factories had to put up
with one electricity blackout day every week. Effective 1 July,
2008, the electricity tariffs and diesel prices in the PRC were
raised. Renminbi already appreciated 7% since January 2008.
CPI inflation in the PRC stays at high levels during the first
half of 2008. Aluminium and copper prices already increased
over 30% since the beginning of 2008. The US sub-prime
mortgage crisis, which affects the global economy and customer
sentiments, has worsened in recent months and its full extent is
still uncertain. In light of all these unfavorable conditions, we
would strive on and continue to focus in cost and quality control,
production efficiency, semi-automation, new product design and
development and providing superior value-added service and
products to our customers. We believe these are the key factors
that have differentiated us from other manufacturers.

The construction of the new plant in Huizhou city, Guangdong
province commenced in February 2008. The progress of the
construction had been delayed due to the unstable weather and
heavy rainfall in the months of June and July this year. We
expect the construction of the 2 new factory blocks will be
completed in early 2009.

In early 2008, the Group embarked upon setting up a six-sigma
team to improve operational efficiency, streamline operation
flows, improve product quality and achieve cost reductions.
Although this is still in its early stage, we believe this would
bring in innovative thinking and benefits to all aspects in our
Group. We have full confidence and will commit totally to the
project.
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Chairman’s Statement

B8

Prospects (ontinued)

Allan Technology (Huizhou) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Group, has been granted China National Accreditation Service
for Conformity Assessment (CNAS) accredited laboratory
status in April 2008. CNAS is the national accreditation body
of China responsible for the accreditation of certification
bodies, laboratories and inspection bodies. CNAS is established
under the approval of the Certification and Accreditation
Administration of the People’s Republic of China (CNCA) and
authorized by CNCA in accordance with the Regulations of the
People’s Republic of China on Certification and Accreditation.
This certification reflects our total commitment to our business
and will be instrumental in our future technology developments.

All in all, the Group remains committed to product development
and product quality. We are fully aware that we may be facing
unprecedented challenges and difficulties lying ahead of us.
The business environment and the global economy are volatile
and full of uncertainties. Nonetheless, with our experience,
know-how, financial strength and commitment, we will tread on
cautiously and continue to stay focused in our core business.

Liquidity And Financial Resources

As at 31 March, 2008, the Group had total assets of
HK$916,460,000 (2007: HK$708,482,000) which was
financed by current liabilities of HK$342,819,000 (2007:
HK$194,340,000), long-term liabilities and deferred taxation of
HK$32,814,000 (2007: HK$20,410,000) and shareholders’ equity
of HK$540,827,000 (2007: HK$493,732,000).

The Group continued to maintain a strong balance sheet and
a healthy liquidity position. As at 31 March, 2008, the Group
held HK$163,221,000 (2007: HK$175,347,000) in cash and bank
deposits. They were mainly placed in US dollar short term
deposits, except for temporary balances held in such non-US
currencies as required pending specific payments. For the year
ended 31 March, 2008, the Group generated net cash inflow from
operating activities of HK$90,398,000 (2007: HK$78,279,000).
As at the same date, total borrowings were HK$33,194,000 (2007:
HK$13,588,000) and the gearing ratio (ratio of total borrowings
to shareholders’ equity) still remained low at 6% (2007: 3%).
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Chairman’s Statement

B8

Liquidity And Financial Resources

(continued)

B E B S E

We continue to apply stringent control over the working
capital cycle. The inventory balance as at 31 March, 2008
increased 28% from HKS$104,010,000 to HK$132,902,000.
The inventory turnover improved from 35 days to 31 days.
The trade receivables balance as at 31 March, 2008 increased
54% from HKS$188,242,000 to HK$290,023,000. The trade
receivables turnover increased from 64 days to 68 days. The
trade payables balance as at 31 March, 2008 increased 57% from
HK$102,928,000 to HK$162,110,000.

Funding for day-to-day operational working capital and capital
expenditures are to be serviced by internal cash flow. With
the expansion plans and the move towards semi-automation in
manufacturing, we are entering into a major new investment
cycle. For the year ended 31 March, 2008, the group invested
approximately HK$94,212,000 (2007: HK$37,135,000) in plant
and machinery, moulds and tools, equipment, computer systems
and other tangible assets, including HK$20,756,000 spent on
the construction of the new plant. The majority of the Group’s
capital expenditures were funded by internal resources except for
some machinery which was funded by bank loans. The CAPEX
budget for the 2008/09 is approximately HK$100 million. Upon
completion of the new plant, further CAPEX would be employed
for the new plant’s machineries and equipment. As such, the
requirement of capital expenditure is going to increase in this
year and the coming few years. Nonetheless, with a strong
financial position and available banking facilities, the Group
is able to provide sufficient financial resources for our current
commitments, working capital requirements, further expansions
of the Group’s business operations and future investment
opportunities, as and when required.
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Chairman’s Statement

B8

Liquidity And Financial Resources

(continued)

B E B S E

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US
dollars, Renminbis, Euros and British Pounds. To reduce the risk
arising from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, the
Group had used structured foreign exchange forward contracts
to hedge against major currency exposures during the year. As
at 31 March, 2008, there were three structured foreign currency
forward contracts at open position. However, due to subsequent
volatile market conditions, these three contracts resulted in a
net realized loss of HK$9,390,000 at their expiry in July 2008.
Currently the Group does not have any outstanding structured
foreign exchange forward contracts.

Contingent Liabilities
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As at 31 March, 2008, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Employee And Remuneration
Policies
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Currently, the Group employs approximately 5,000 employees.
The majority of our employees work in the PRC. The Group
remunerates our employees based on their performances,
experiences and prevailing market rates while performances
bonus are granted on a discretionary basis. Share options may
also be granted to employees based on individual performance
and attainment of certain set targets.

Appreciation
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On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere appreciation to our employees, shareholders
and business associates for their contribution and support
throughout the year.
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Directors and Senior Management

H R R BEAH

Executive Directors

Cheung Lun, aged 80, is the founder and Chairman of the
Group. He has more than 45 years of management and technical

experience in the industry. He is responsible for formulating the
Group’s overall strategic planning and development.

Cheung Shu Wan, aged 47, is the Managing Director of the
Group. He is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the Group
in 1983. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from the
University of London, England. He is responsible for the sales &
marketing, research & development and engineering functions
of the Group. He also assists the Chairman in corporate strategic
planning and development.

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, aged 50, is the Executive Director
of the Group. She is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined
the Group in 1984. She obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science
from Kingston Polytechnic, England. She is in charge of the
overall manufacturing operations of the Group.

Cheung Lai See, Sophie, aged 45, is the Executive Director of
the Group. She is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined
the Group in 1995. She obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science
from the University of London, England and a master degree in
Business Management from the City University, England. She is
responsible for the financial and administration functions of the
Group.

Cheung Pui, aged 61, is the Executive Director of the Group and
joined the Group in 1963. He has over 40 years of experience in
the plastic injection moulding industry. He is responsible for all
technical aspects of plastic injection moulding activities of the
Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

H R R BEAH

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Chan How Chun, aged 53, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Directors in September 2004. She has extensive
experience in accounting, finance and administration. She holds

a Bachelor degree in Commerce and a master degree in Business
Administration from the University of Windsor in Canada and
a PhD degree in Management from the Hong Kong Baptist
University.

Lai Ah Ming, Leon, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in December 1995. He is a solicitor
majoring in commercial and property works.

Lo Chung Mau, aged 47, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in November 1997. He is a surgeon
specialising in liver surgery including liver transplantation and is
currently the Chin Lan Hong Professor and Chief of the Division
of Hepatobiliary/Pancreatic Surgery and Liver Transplantation of
the University of Hong Kong.

Senior Management

Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, aged 48, is the General Manager
of Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited. He is the son of Mr.

Cheung Lun and joined the Group in 1983. He obtained a degree
in Bachelor of Science from the University of Wales, England.
He is responsible for the manufacturing management and control
of the company.

Cheung Shu Sang, aged 43, is the Director of Research and
Development of the Group. He is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun and
joined the Group in 1994. He holds a BSc degree in Computing
Science and a MSc degree in Management Science, both at
Imperial College, London. He also holds a PhD degree in
Automation from the University of Bristol. He is responsible for
the research and development function of the Group.

Chung Chi Yin, aged 45, is the Director of Engineering of the
Group and joined the Group in 1990. He obtained a degree in
Bachelor of Science in Product Design and Technology from The
Open University of Hong Kong. He is responsible for the product
development of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

H R R BEAH

Senior Management (ontinued)

Kwok Ka Lee, Carrie, aged 40, is the Manufacturing Manager
of Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited and joined the

Group in 1990. She obtained a degree in Bachelor of Business
(Transport and Logistics Management) from Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology. She is responsible for the manufacturing
functions of the company.

Leung Mun Keung, aged 49, is the General Manager of Conan
Electric Manufacturing Limited. He joined the Group in 1991
and is responsible for the manufacturing management and control
of the company.

Li Wing Kong, aged 47, is the Director of Sales and Marketing
and joined the Group in 1988. He obtained a higher diploma
in Electrical Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic. He
is responsible for the Group’s sales & marketing functions in
Europe, America and other regions (except Japan).

Tsang Wing Tong, Michelle, aged 41, is the General Manager of
Allan Electric Mfg., Limited and joined the Group in 1987. She
is responsible for the manufacturing management and control of
the company.
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Directors and Senior Management

H R R BEAH

Senior Management (ontinued)

Tsui Wing Keung, aged 52, is the Moulds and Tools Manager of
the Group and joined the Group in 1992. He has over 16 years of

experience in plastic injection mould making. He is responsible
for the management of the mould making operation for plastic
injection moulds.

Wong Lai Yung, aged 46, is the Finance and Account Manager
of the Group and joined the Group in 2006. She holds a master
degree of Business Administration and a master degree of
Corporate Governance of The Open University of Hong Kong.
Ms. Wong is currently a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants FCCA, Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. She is responsible for all the financial and accounting
aspects of the Group.

Wong Mei Lin, aged 45, is the Director of Administration
and Personnel of the Group and joined the Group in 2000. She
obtained a Higher Certificate in Company Secretaryship and
Administration from Hong Kong Polytechnic. She is responsible
for the human resources and administration management of the
Group.

Yasuhiro Terada, aged 46, is the Marketing Manager. He
joined the Group in 1993 and has over 20 years of experience in
marketing of electrical home appliances. He is responsible for the
Group’s sales & marketing functions for Japan.
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Directors’ Report

o

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March, 2008.

Principal Activities

EHFENFMREANARE ZFTN
FZH=F—HILFErEREGREE R
KRR B i 3 o

EX Y

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

ANF T — B E R s SR A
B o HEZEM G AT 2 EBF LA
B IREE R 33 -

eV ik

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March, 2008 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 35.

An interim dividend of HK4 cents per share amounting to
approximately HK$13,417,000 was paid to the shareholders
during the year. The directors now recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK6 cents per share to the shareholders
on the register of members on 25 August, 2008, amounting
to approximately HK$20,126,000, and the retention of the
remaining profit.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s

largest suppliers and customers are as follows:

AEEEE —FFENE=ZH =+ —HIL4F
B2 MU 35S HZ A Ian & -

RN > B IRAS A B I 4 W A1 - T
IR S 2 FREA) By 13,417,000 #E T © 8 FHEr
PR R IR AT R W B AR 6 AT E
JNENH 0 H 252 2 R
RN 420,126,000 #5 70 K 7 B4 % T i Al -

T AR

A R R R FF 2 R
PG E e

Purchases i 5
— the largest supplier — IR HERE RS 14%
— five largest suppliers combined — HORBLRER AR 30%
Sales PR
— the largest customer — RKE% 44%
— five largest customers combined — HRE% & 91%

At no time during the year, a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
has an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.
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Directors’ Report

o

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 96.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the

Company are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Distributable Reserves of the
Company

In addition to the retained profits, under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the Company

cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium account.

In the opinion of the directors, the reserves of the Company
which were available for distribution to shareholders at 31
March, 2008 were HK$63,931,000 (2007: HK $89,884,000).

Investment Property

Details of the investment property of the Group are set out in

note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

o

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$94 million
on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment principally to

expand and upgrade its manufacturing facilities.

Details of these and other movements during the year in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors and Directors’ Service
Contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Cheung Lun

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie
Mr. Cheung Pui

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chan How Chun

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon

Professor Lo Chung Mau

According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Dr. Chan
How Chun and Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie shall retire by
rotation at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each director (except for the Chairman
of the Board and/or the Managing Director) is the period up to
his/her retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Laws.

None of the directors of the Company proposed for re-clection
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not
determinable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Report

o

Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

At 31 March, 2008, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,

underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”), were as follows:
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Directors’ Report

o

Directors’ and Chief Executives’

Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and

D eb enture S (continued)

wHNTFEITHANE R
&y ~ AHEA A ~ (ERE
e 7 P g MR o

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company A 27 i) A IR 4L 0.10 Y8 2 ¥ e
Approximate %
Number of ordinary shares held of the issued
Personal Corporate Other share capital
Name Capacity interest interest interest Total of the Company
Pk a4 I B AR C#y
w4 S LUN £ ALt JefbhEn WY RBZBEE
Mr. Cheung Lun Founder of discretionary trust 146,119,960 146,119,960 43.56%
Gy £ AET VA AN (Note)
(Hizt)
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan Beneficial Owner 46,905,335
s fR et J EE7 2PN
Beneficiary of trust 146,119,960
Atz A (Note)
(Hzt)
193,025,295 57.55%
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Beneficial Owner 600,000
Maggie J-Ei% ZUN
REZL T Beneficiary of trust 146,119,960
fEatZamA (Note)
(Hzt)
146,719,960 43.74%
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Beneficial Owner 500,000
Sophie HRAA
SR &+ Beneficiary of trust 146,119,960
fartzaA (Note)
(Hzt)
146,619,960 43.71%
Mr. Cheung Pui Beneficial Owner 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.30%

TREEE
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o

bJ

Directors’ and Chief Executives
Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and

D eb enture S (continued)
Note:

The references to 146,119,960 shares relate to the same block of
shares in the Company, of which 134,821,960 shares are held by Allan
Investment Company Limited (“AICL”), 7,298,000 shares are held by
Commence Investment Limited (“CIL”) and 4,000,000 shares are held
by Unison Associates Limited (“UAL”). AICL and CIL are owned as to
89.0% and 100% respectively by UAL. Mr. Cheung Lun is the settlor of
The Cheung Lun Family Trust (“Trust”). Credit Suisse Trust Limited
as trustee of the Trust holds 100% of the shareholding of UAL and the
discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust are, among others, Mr. Cheung
Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie and Ms. Cheung Lai See,
Sophie.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief
executives, nor their associates, of the Company had, as at 31
March, 2008, any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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o

Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the scheme.

Arrangement to Purchase Shares
or Debentures

Other than the share option scheme set out in note 24 to the

consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Appointment of Independent Non-
executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-

executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
Securities on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of
the independent non-executive directors are independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts
of Significance and Connected
Transactions

Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Conan”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy

agreement with Fair Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of AICL, a substantial shareholder of the Company, pursuant
to which Fair Pacific Limited granted to Conan a tenancy in
respect of certain land in Lilin, Huicheng District, Huizhou City,
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) at a monthly rent of
HK$28,300. The tenancy agreement was for a term of three years
commenced from 1 October, 2003 and renewable up to year 2028
on every 7 years. The total amount of rent paid for the year by
the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$339,600.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts
of Significance and Connected
Transactions (continued)

Allan Plastics Mfg., Limited (“APML”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement
with Income Village Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
AICL, pursuant to which Income Village Limited granted to

APML a tenancy in respect of certain premises in Lilin Village,
Huicheng District, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent
of HK$17,000. The tenancy agreement was for a term of three
years commenced from 1 April, 2006. The total amount of rent
paid for the year by the Group in respect of this agreement was
HK$204,000.

Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Karan”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy
agreement with AICL, pursuant to which AICL granted to Karan
a tenancy in respect of certain premises in Lilin, Huicheng
District, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent of HK$75,000.
The tenancy agreement was for a term of 40 months commenced
from 1 December, 2004. The total amount of rent paid for the
year by the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$900,000.
The tenancy agreement expired on 31 March, 2008 and Karan
renewed the agreement with AICL for a term of 36 months
commenced from 1 April, 2008.

GRS RS AR AR (“HG ™), a wholly foreign-
owned enterprise of the Company, entered into two tenancy
agreements with Mr. Cheung Pui, pursuant to which Mr. Cheung
Pui granted to B[ a tenancy in respect of certain premises
in Lilin, Huicheng District, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly
rent of RMB7,500 and RMBI18,000, respectively. The first
tenancy agreement was for a term of 3 years commenced from 1
January, 2006. The total amount of rent paid for the year by the
Group in respect of this agreement was RMB90,000 (equivalent
to HK$93,500). The second tenancy agreement was for a term
of three years commenced from 1 October, 2005. The total
amount of rent paid for the year by the Group in respect of this
agreement was RMB216,000 (equivalent to HK$224,500).
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts
of Significance and Connected
Transactions (continued)

The independent non-executive directors confirm that the
transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary course of its business, on normal commercial terms,
and in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing
such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Emolument Policy

The Company has not set up a remuneration committee. The
Board is responsible for reviewing the remuneration policy
and packages of the directors and senior executives and made
recommendations about their proposals to the Chairman

which are determined by reference to the performance of the
individuals, the Group, market practices and conditions with a
view to retain and motivate executives to pursue the Group’s
operation. The Personnel Department is responsible for collecting
human resources data and recommending proposal to the Board
for consideration.
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Substantial Shareholders FERH

So far is known to any director or chief executive of the MANFEFRHEESATE NS FH > i
Company, at 31 March, 2008, shareholders (other than directors EENAFE=H=+—H » AAN G %k
or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short FH BE R 0 vb B R BB 2 S B AR 2B XV
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company TR 2 K 58 3 43 B A A6k SCAH ) AS N ) P R B
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the SOEUN A N T FE B 5 S WA B ) 5 336 16
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which BT B EC I A B B A0 e A N =) Y RE 25 Bk
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company WA ZIER(AANFER ST SR
under Section 336 of the SFO or had otherwise notified to the AN UNE

Company were as follows:

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of the FEIBEFAARA A IR Z T8
Company
Approximate
Number of % of
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares shareholding
(¢ =4
JBe 3 44 il W BBy B2
Credit Suisse Trust Limited Trustee 146,119,960 43.56%
(EEPN
UAL Held by controlled corporation 142,119,960 42.37%
T 2 A R R A
Beneficial Owner 4,000,000 1.19%
HadEa A
AICL Beneficial Owner 134,821,960 40.19%
T E A BR A A Hafa A
Webb, David Michael Beneficial Owner 2,670,000 0.80%
HadEa A
Held by controlled corporation 17,462,000 521%
Ry i Pa/NEES 5 (Note)
(Wft)
Preferable Situation Assets Limited Beneficial Owner 16,816,000 5.01%
HEmilEa A (Note)
(HfE)
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Substantial Shareholders (continued)

Note:

The reference to 17,462,000 shares above are held by Preferable
Situation Assets Limited, a company 100% controlled by Mr. Webb,
David Michael. According to a notice filed pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO, the shareholding of Preferable Situation Assets Limited in the
Company was increased from 16,816,000 shares to 17,462,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March, 2008, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$880,000.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of

corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices of the Company is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” on page 26 to 32.

ﬂégﬂﬁﬁ(%ﬁ)

bl BT B ) 17,462,000 1% B 473 BH Webb, David
Michael J¢ 4= 4 # #£ il Z Preferable Situation
Assets Limited ¢ - 4% H & 1 & 1 28
XV #2250 > Preferable Situation Assets
Limited A2 W] B 554 2 B i 16,816,000 5
N Z 17,462,000 % -

Br b SCHT #8R F AN R S FFNE = A
=+—H > BT AL (CRA A HE S
LATBN BBRAM) W A& A 2w B AR %
75 M B R 55 XV IR 2 M 3 0 B 2
SCOR 1) A2 ) 4% S B8 RT 0 A 8 W) 9% 7 7
BB ER 336 ik B Ar 2 Bt M A A 24
) Sy B R B < W i IR

1K

R AREEAG TEE N H A Z B
#) 155 880,000 i T ©

e P AT AN VAN
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the

Company’s Bye-Laws, or the laws in Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors, the directors confirm
that the Company has maintained during the year the amount of
public float as required by the Listing Rules.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Lun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 July, 2008
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The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital
to the success of the Group and the sustained development of the
Group. The Company aims at complying with, where appropriate,
all code provisions set out in Appendix 14 Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules™).

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as
set out in the CG Code of the Listing Rules. The Company has,
throughout the year ended 31 March, 2008 and up to the date of
publication of the annual report, applied and complied with most
of the Code Provisions save certain deviations from the Code
Provisions in respect of code provisions A4.1, A.4.2, B.1.1 and
E.1.2 details of which are explained below.

Securities Transactions by
Directors

AN AL W] R G A S I AR 4R B 2
LR B+ o AN A EUESY (fE
T EE UL ) I S 5 5 BT A PR W R 2R
EATRLAN (T EATREAN 1) B Bk 14 [ 423886 W
RESF R (T A8 7 B D) o B s BB ST (1<
HGsC ) -

AN T ZAZEE R R TRYE L K R R
B 14 2 A5 <7 B BT 8B 0% BRI AN < HI G SC
M 5T - BRI SCA4.1 A42 - B.1.1
K B2 AN A 25 T i e <7 RIAG SCAT 4 4h
ORI R OCRFIR) > AN R B E —F TN
A= —HIEFERE DL T Rt
SRR H I BESE RS RIS -

B HIETRF LS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has made specific enquiry of all Directors regarding any non-
compliance with the Model Code during the year under review
and they have all confirmed that they had fully complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code.

Board of Directors

AR w] B PR Ak BT R BRS BR H Br i i
AT N FOHEAT R IR 2 5 WA E ST ]I (47
HeSP I ) o R0 W) AR i EE R [ e A
WA 15 AT R A 7 57 B <1 I 2 AT AR
A > AW E R IR S O e 2 AR
Hesy U BT LS 2 AR

EHE

The Board comprises of five Executive Directors, being Mr.
Cheung Lun (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Managing
Director), Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Ms. Cheung Lai See,
Sophie and Mr. Cheung Pui; three Independent Non-executive
Directors, being Dr. Chan How Chun, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon
and Professor Lo Chung Mau. Biographical details, which
include relationships among members of the Board, are provided
in the “Directors and Senior Management” section of the annual
report.

AnFlEFGNABBUHELANITES
g i SE AL (W) ~ SR E3 Se A (S A&
M)~ SREBE L REN L b R
B REABUFRITES RERM
£ BUREW] SE R e R RE BT - JE R RENS
(L35 e i B ] 2 B R B A 4R 3Rk [ 45
FhmREMAR N -
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Board of Directors (continued)

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board

and the management. The Board is responsible for providing
high-level guidance and effective oversight of the management
while day-to-day management of the Group is delegated to the
management team of each respective subsidiary. Generally
speaking, the Board is responsible for:

. Formulating the Group’s long term strategy and monitoring
the implementation thereof

. Approval of interim and year end dividend

. Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports

. Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

. Monitoring the performance of the management

. Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and

assets disposal

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategies
that have been approved.

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year and
additional meetings or telephone conference are convened as
and when the Board considers necessary. During the year, eight
board meetings were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance
record in the year are as follows:

Attendance/

Executive Directors No. of meeting

Mr. Cheung Lun 5/8
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan 8/8
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie 6/8
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 8/8
Mr. Cheung Pui 6/8

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chan How Chun 4/8
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon 4/8
Professor Lo Chung Mau 4/8
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Board complied with the Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent

Non-executive Directors and one of the Independent Non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related finance management expertise. Each
of the Independent Non-executive Director has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer

The Board considered that the duties of the Managing Director
(“MD”) were no difference from that required of a chief
executive officer stipulated under the code provision A.2 of the
Code. The management would regard that the term MD will have
the same meaning as the chief executive officer of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director, who is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board,
and ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed and
where required, resolved by the Board timely and constructively.

The MD of the Board is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to run the Group’s business and day-to-day
operation, and implement the Group’s strategy with respect to
the achievement of its business objectives with the assistance of
the Executive Directors and senior management.

o
TS )

HE G OES WA 3.1001) & ) RA
B PR =B e T ESR > LHp
— BT ERAAMEE  HER
¥ B0 & 5T BRI S R 2 BLE o B
MBI MATEE R LA 313
2 M E » st H B ST AE R - A
NERE A B AT EREINFES LT
HRIES 313 W Fr i 2 s vEFe 51 > AR 9%
e8| 2K S HE S o

» S— N

F I AT AR R
WG A I I B U
SCAL2 T 8 R AT B B 2 I
B e AR AT | W
7 A AT B -

EHGEHABTES HAHEEHRE
00 DR LA RO AR o DL R IR e
T B Ak ok i S 7E 75 5 R 4 R BT AT R
Lo B IA

T A AP T R R A
A W s B e H WA S AERAT
0 A B R BT BT AR
R SES H AR P aT 2 o o

Allan International Holdings Limited

28 i o s A PR ]



Corporate Governance Report

AEER R

Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Currently, none of the three independent non-executive directors
of the Company is appointed for a specific term. This constitutes
a deviation from the GC Code. In accordance with the provisions
of the Bye-laws of the Company, any director appointed by the
Board during the year shall retire and submit themselves for
re-clection at the first general meeting immediately following
his/her appointment. Further, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time being, or if their number
is not three or multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not exceeding one-third, shall retire from office. The directors to
retire by rotation shall be those who have been longest in office
since their last re-election or appointment. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are similar to
those in the GC Code.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders
at the next following annual general meeting after their
appointment, and every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Chairman and/
or Managing Director is not subject to retirement by rotation
or taken into account on determining the number of Directors
to retire. This constitutes a deviation from the GC Code. As
continuation is a key factor to the successful implementation
of any long term business plans, the Board believes that, the
present arrangement is most beneficial to the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has not set up a remuneration committee. The
Board is responsible for reviewing the remuneration policy

and packages of the directors and senior executives and made
recommendations about their proposals to the Chairman
which are determined by reference to the performance of the
individuals, the Group, market practices and conditions with a
view to retain and motivate executives to pursue the Group’s
operation. The Personnel Department is responsible for collecting
human resources data and recommending proposal to the Board
for consideration.

Nomination of Directors

Currently, the Company does not have a nomination committee.
The Board will identify individuals suitably qualified to become
board members when necessary. The Board will give due
consideration to the suitability of a candidate for directorship

after taking into account of his/her experience, qualification
and other relevant factors. All candidates must also meet the
standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules.
A candidate who is to be appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director should also meet the independence criteria set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company regards its Annual General Meeting as an

opportunity for direct communication between the Board and its
shareholders. All Directors and external auditors make an effort
to attend the Annual General Meeting to address shareholders’
queries. The Company also responds to requests for information
and queries from the shareholders and investors and welcomes
the views of shareholders on matter affecting the Group and
encourages them to attend shareholders’ meeting to communicate
any concerns they might have with the Board.
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Communication with Shareholders

(continued)

The Chairman of the Board had not attended the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 22 August, 2007. The Chairman
will endeavour to attend all future annual general meetings of
the Company unless unexpected or special circumstances prevent
him from doing so.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration payable to the
Company’s auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as
follows:

Services rendered Fees payable

HKS$°000

Audit services 1,775
Non-audit services

Review of interim results 253

Taxation services 219

Audit of occupational retirement scheme 23

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same
term of reference, which describes the authority and duties of

the Committee, as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the GC
Code.

The Audit Committee will meet at least twice each year. During
the year, the Audit Committee met twice considering the annual
results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March, 2007
and the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30
September, 2007, assessing any changes in accounting policies
and practices, major judgmental areas and compliance with
applicable legal and accounting requirements and standards,
discussing with the auditor of the Company on internal control.
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AUdlt Committee (continued)

Details of Committee members and their attendance records are

listed as below:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Dr. Chan How Chun (Independent Non-executive Director & 212
chairman of the Audit Committee)

Mr. Lai Ah Ming Leon  (Independent Non-executive Director) 212

Professor Lo Chung Mau  (Independent Non-executive Director) 2/2

Director’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statement

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for (i)

overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group with a view to ensuring such financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and (ii)
selecting suitable accounting policies and applying the selected
accounting policies consistently with the support of reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities
is set out on page 33 to 34 of this Annual Report.

Internal Controls

A sound and effective internal control system is important to
safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Company’s

assets. During the year, the Board reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group. The review covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of the
Group.
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Deloitte.

R - BERSSSET

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

BEZEESH 35/F One Pacific Place
/E AOEH—E35E 88 Queensway
1I_ul\ Hong Kong
TO THE MEMBERS OF ALLAN INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED £ G
i 1 B A A B A ) A 1 B AR T A R ) 2 i B R

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Allan International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 35 to 95, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 March, 2008, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March,

2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 July, 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 March, 2008

T €

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Net investment income

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Increase in fair value of an investment
property

Interest on bank borrowings wholly
repayable within five years

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year
Dividends paid
2008 interim dividend of HK4 cents

(2007: HK3 cents) per ordinary share

2007 final dividend of HK7 cents
(2006: HK6 cents) per ordinary share

Earnings per share
Basic
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2008 2007
e = JICS ZERERLA
NOTES HKS$’000 HKS$’000
i3 THx T#T
6 1,547,825 1,072,144
(1,344,202) (887,004)
203,623 185,140
1,007 5,273
7 11,276 6,012
(33,445) (27,056)
(111,612) (88,742)
4,960 —
(1,052) 916)
74,757 79,711
9 (9,885) (10,616)
10 64,872 69,095
11
13,417 10,063
23,480 20,126
36,897 30,189
12
HK19.3 cents HK20.6 cents
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

f’w"”"‘é?‘*" 115

At 31 March, 2008 W ZFEENFE=H =1—H
2008 2007
e = JICS TR
NOTES HKS$’000 HK$’000
Mt THx T#T
Non-current assets FEE G E
Investment property ERa-L/ES 13 9,500 4,540
Property, plant and equipment W2k~ RS Rt 14 179,702 126,180
Prepaid lease payments MBI 15 42,392 40,395
Available-for-sale investments AR 16 55,731 46,446
Other financial assets oA BA 5 17 5,463 —
Prepayment for acquisition of TATEE R D2 ~ B M
property, plant and equipment e 435 182
293,223 217,743
Current assets TE)
Inventories e 18 132,902 104,010
Auvailable-for-sale investments Ak E g 16 3,898 4,807
Trade receivables and bills receivable U & 5 Bk K JE iy Z2 4= 19 290,023 188,242
Other receivables HoAth REUIR 3K 19 20,910 8,294
Mould deposits paid CATERRT & 6,496 8,585
Prepaid lease payments TEAT L& HIE 15 746 549
Tax recoverable JREZE R TE 4,479 251
Other financial assets HAh B & e 17 562 654
Time deposits and deposits placed nzﬂ;ﬁ A7 3K B 4 Rl A
with a financial institution FEK 20 91,791 92,148
Bank balances and cash SRATHEAT I B 4 20 71,430 83,199
623,237 490,739
Current liabilities B & &
Trade payables and bills payable TEASHEE S B R S A g8 21 162,110 102,928
Other payables and accruals At AT B Rk S A R Ak 148,245 65,665
Mould deposits received CR AT 4 14,375 12,950
Tax payable JFEATBLIE 3,687 4,973
Other financial liabilities HoAtly ﬁzﬁ%ﬁ f& 17 963 1,053
Secured bank loans — due within one ?EETEF SRATEN — —4E N
year 21|14 22 13,439 6,771
342,819 194,340
Net current assets VB & FE 280,418 296,399
573,641 514,142

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

.‘.‘%"A%F" 115

At 31 March, 2008 R EEENF=H =+—H
2008 2007
ZREN\AE TR
NOTES HKS$’000 HK$’000
ioria T#C TFT
Capital and reserves G R kA
Share capital s 23 33,543 33,543
Reserves ftHg 507,284 460,189
540,827 493,732
Non-current liabilities FELE) B fE
Deferred tax liabilities ARFEFIH 25 13,059 13,593
Secured bank loans — due after PP ERAT B — —4F 1R
one year 21|14 22 19,755 6,817
32,814 20,410
573,641 514,142

The consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to 95 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
18 July 2008 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHEUNG LAI CHUN, MAGGIE
REZ

Director

EH

BN EE3S HE 95 H 2 M HEm &
T \AEE H +/\ H 5 # 5Erte K 2HE TR
B Wil FAIESECERLSE

CHEUNG LAI SEE, SOPHIE
(3

Director

HH
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Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

At 1 April, 2006

Gain on fair value changes
of available-for-sale
investments, representing
net income recognised
directly in equity

[nvestment revaluation
reserve released on
disposal of available-for-
sale investments

Profit for the year

Total recognised income for
the year

Dividends proposed for 2007
Dividends paid

At 31 March, 2007

Gain on fair value changes
of available-for-sale
investments

Exchange differences arising
on translation

Net Income recognised
directly in equity

Investment revaluation
reserve released on
disposal of available-for-
sale investments

Profit for the year

Total recognised income for
the year

Dividends proposed for 2008
Dividends paid

At 31 March, 2008

REFZAENH—
H

S SR
FEEEZ B
(Al
HHR R

SEE N
FRHE A i
e,

AEE R

AR DR
A

HEIREE 2007 M 5
EAHE

REFFtE
ZA=t-H

A 2 B
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BREEFIRNZ
St

T NS
HEEL R
s BT g
IR
RAEE A
RAEEERERA
BEIREE 2008 M 5
EARE

REFRNGE
ZA=4—H

Capital ~ Investment
Share Share  redemption  revaluation Exchange Dividend Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
WAk 4

Bk RpvEBUR  BmEE TG R RAEME  RREA b
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS'000
T Tk T#T T#T T T T Tk
33,543 109,884 793 (6,904) — 20,126 296,941 454383
— — — 112 — — — 112

— — — 331 — — — 331

— — — — — — 69,095 69,095

— — — 443 — — 69,095 69,538

— — — — — 23,480 (23,480) —
— — — — — (20,126) (10,063) (30,189)
33,543 109,384 793 (0,461) — 23,480 332,493 493,732
= = = 7,198 = = = 7,198

— — — — 11,455 — — 11,455

— — — 7,798 11,455 — — 19,253
— — — (133) — — — (133)

— — — — — — 64,872 64,872

— — — 7,665 11,455 — 64,872 83,992

— — — — — 20,126 (20,126) —
— — — — — (23,480) (13,417) (36,897)
33,543 109,884 793 1,204 11,455 20,126 363,822 540,827
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for AP Ak B g

For the year ended 31 March, 2008

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Release of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Interest expenses
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Net investment income
Write-off of property, plant and equipment
Increase in fair value of an investment
property
Allowance for (reversal of allowance for)
bad and doubtful debt, net

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade receivables and bills
receivable

Increase in other receivables

Increase (decrease) in other financial assets/
liabilities

Decrease in mould deposits paid

Increase in trade payables and bills payable

Increase in other payables and accruals

Increase (decrease) in mould deposits
received

Cash generated from operations

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax refund

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
enterprise income tax paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2008 2007
e 2 I ZERL
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T Fior
g ]
o 5 T Y ) 74,757 79,711
R
A A} H B R T o 716 549
Y2~ BE Kt 2 e
40,265 34,666
FILE S H 1,052 916
WY - RUE Kt 2 R
(g4t ) 2,203 €2))
PG WA TR (11,276) (6,012)
R E N N E ] 1,743 5,293
P& T E BN
(4,960) —
SRS AR M CRIEARSB M )
R 223 (229)
BEESEHNZAEHSHE
104,723 114,803
BRI (28,892) (37,331)
JRE WS B 7 R ik 5 B M S 48 348 o
(102,004) (44,676)
At JRE S T $ (12,469) (5,732)
HoAbBAB G / A ER I Geib)
(303) 529
TR R 2 I 2,089 1,446
JREAST B2 7 AR ik e JE A S48 348 o 59,182 28,821
At R AT R 2 B MEASS SR A5) 338 82,580 29,835
Bk B a1 / ()
1,425 (1,045)
MEERELZHE 106,331 86,650
AT HE RIS B (12,923) (7,460)
7B [1] 75 s A5 i 247 1,162
EL AT o B A [ s 3 P A5
(3,257) (2,073)
5 B P 2k 2 Bl A
90,398 78,279
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 March, 2008

#HEE
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments
Deposit paid for the acquisition of property,

plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale

investments
Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment

Decrease in time deposits and deposit placed

with financial institution
Acquisition of prepaid lease payments

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid

Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid

New bank loans raised

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF THE YEAR,
representing bank balances and cash

e eny ]

WEEYISE ~ W Mot
WHRA N ERE

WER YIS - WE RS e ARl &
S ATt B BT KA

AL
HEYIZE - W5 B P sR

TE SR B A TS 4 PR A A Bk i D
S LA A B ROH
B3 B) BT FE 3L

Y )

e AR

R AT B

e AR

HERAT R

19 Y6 ) P RE L 4

Bl KBS L)/ Wini

SRR Z BLE K Bl N H

SRR BB BB MEH -

MR RAT R AT LB

2008 2007
“REN\E B i S
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T#7x THor
(94,076) (35,379)
(9,896) (11,254)
(389) (1,012)
9,263 4,935
6,040 6,381
4,877 224
357 43,094
— (20,641)
(83,824) (13,652)
(36,897) (30,189)
(9,472) (5,921)
(1,052) (916)
29,078 3,680
(18,343) (33,346)
(11,769) 31,281
83,199 51,918
71,430 83,199
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

A W5 W 3l Bk
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FENF=H =+ —HILFE

General

2N
ey B

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The immediate holding Company is Allan
Investment Co. Ltd., a private company incorporated in
Hong Kong, while the ultimate holding company is Unison
Associates Ltd., a private company incorporated in British
Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the Corporation Information section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacture
and distribution of household electrical appliances.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”)

AN TR E R B2 s
RAFE > HRHEEBE S5 TA
PR 2\ b i (T 52 fr 1) o B #28E )
ﬁﬂ%ﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ"ﬂ R A
S M R 37 o B #& B 4 ) A Unison
Associates Limited > it %5 & ik & BE 5
S ST o AN F A A R 2 Hhhk
o B 3 M B A AR AR IR A FE R
A A R o

A A G BCE R 7 AR A S
e B > B O W) T SE S

fra MBS IRER T LTS - IR
R Z IR -

PR AT M A2 1B wT
2 s S e v
SUJ (T 7 78 B 5 i

In the current year, the Company has applied, for the
first time, the following new standard, amendment and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
which are effective for the Company’s financial year
beginning 1 April, 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7
HK(IFRIC) — INT 8

Capital Disclosures
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) — INT 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC) — INT 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HK(IFRIC) — INT 11

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

A ])
AR > AEEE XKML HE
HE g at A & BT A 2 BT MR - BT

Fe i B (CF SCAART B 7 s B 5 i o e
HIL) o 255 A AR AL E — T %
L4 A — H B i 2 B -

BhRETENE R AR

BRMHREENR S eRTE NE

B REHREENRE REFERHREEA
LRGBS HCHE

B ERMEREENRE TR aTE TR
A8 REAIN

B (ARMHREEARE MRS LB
REG)REF 0%

B RRMHREENRE FEAHREENR 2 &0
RAGREA IR REFRH S

PR AR BT A WS B 5 e 4 v R 3 A Bl
GER S EEIHES VTR TE Y
B3y 20 4 AR T R o iUt >
TR JRHEA T AT R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

A W5 W 3l Bk

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under
HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively.
Certain information presented in prior year under the
requirements of HKAS 32 has been removed and the
relevant comparative information based on the requirements
of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has been presented
for the first time in the current year.

The Company has not early applied the following new and
revised standards or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements'

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs'

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements”

HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and
(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation'

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Vesting Conditions and Cancellations'

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations’

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments'

HK(IFRIC) — INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements’
HK(IFRIC) — INT 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes’

HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 ~ HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July,
2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January, 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July,
2008

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July, 2009.
HKAS 27 (revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control, which will be accounted
for as equity transactions.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new or revised standards or interpretations will
have no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

3. FEEFTHUR

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at
fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Investments in Subsidiaries
Investments in Subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
balance Sheets at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

o 4 WS TR T AR 9 JEE o L o A
B e T (O 2 4 T R
T AW TR > 4 W2 @3 R
AT -

GEUMBRECRETEGMAE
WA 2 7 i B 5 o Y T A o It
LI e R R E I IR TR R
Gy WA BR A ) 8 25 i R B R A s
FMAR IR RE 2 70 ) P B 0

AR H AL

B BB i 3R A AR 8 R e L I
R 2B A o WAL T A ROEAT
i) T # 2 B 5 % G BOR > e A
i ) 7 4 5 DA MR A o T 2
tE -

A A W B B 2 BB A R 2 SRS
R PR SO O B R e R
IEFFASR G Wt R o

UGB 5 O R S ) 2 P
AR R B R B B A AR
VA L Ath B 23 R B B B2k e

B S A L 2 32 5 - B8R - ik
T2 PR 5 AR b T LB o

F 0 2> vi) 2 Be ¥

B A ) 2 B DA BUAS Bl 2% ik
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A o

BA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

3. FEEFTHUR

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount.

Rental income from property is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the relevant lease terms.

Investment properties

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year
in which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

(#8)
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B BT B B D SE A R B ke
[

SR E A BB A TR R EREAE
T B T R S i I [ R B Bt - A
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W 36 2 R B WA T A AR A 39 T 4 AR
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B¥EYE

AV HERB IR > BB ST IR A (1
FEAEAT B AL 2 B 50 518 - I
ERBAR - BCEY)SEF AP E R
B EYWEAFEEBELZ RS
N RN &

BUE W ST B SO H R A B R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

3. FEEFTHUR

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognized as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized as income immediately.

(78)

Yok ~ W Beidk il (40
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of each category of
financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

3. FEEGTHUR

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued) (%)
Financial instruments (continued) ST H (4)
Effective interest method (continued) BB R ()

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.
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Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables and bills receivable, other receivables, time
deposits and deposits placed with a financial institution
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments or loans and
receivables. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been impacted.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.
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Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and bills receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 60 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

3. FEEFTHUR

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and bill receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable and a bill receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in equity. For available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

3. FEEFTHUR

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. An
equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or
other financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
in respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial liabilities held for trading and those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Effective interest method (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated at FVTPL.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest paid on
the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables and
bills payable, other payables and accruals and secured bank
loans) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship. The Group designates
certain derivatives as non-hedging instruments which are
deemed as financial assets/liabilities held for trading.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and recoverable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
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Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit
or loss, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
dealt with in equity.
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3. FEEFTHUR

3. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Consideration paid for land use rights are recorded as
prepaid lease payments and are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term
of relevant land use rights acquired. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group company, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that company (foreign currencies)
are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period.

(78)
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A W5 W 3l Bk

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognized as a separate component of
equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange differences
are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in
finance costs in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Capital Risk Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure the Company
will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Company’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Company consists of debt,
which includes the secured bank loans, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, share premium
and retained profits.

3. FEEFTHUR

(78)
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For the year ended 31 March, 2008 #r _FENFE=H =A—HILFE

4. Capital Risk Management 4,

(continued)

B A JE B P

(%)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a quarterly basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associates with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the

AN T HEF AR EALEN - (E 5
Hh 2 — Wy EHE I E A A

Je AU AR B JEL R, <

MRYETE 2 2 i

BER > AR ER SO - 3%

directors, the Company will balance its overall capital AT B B AT s o > AT L
structure through the payment of dividends, new share ARBERE o
issues as well as the issue of new debt.
. . =
5. Financial Instruments 5. @4 T A
5a. Categories of financial instruments 5a. AT HEMN
2008 2007
ZRENAE TR
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#o0 FT
Financial assets L E
Financial assets designated at EMB R AT HEFEZ
FVTPL W& 5,463 —
Derivative financial instruments MAE4m T E 562 654
Loans and receivables (including B % B IE (GL 45 B4 J
cash and cash equivalents) Bl &%(H) 469,964 366,373
Available-for-sale financial assets A fit 4Bl = 59,629 51,253
Financial liabilities Sh e
Derivative financial instruments MAE4R T H 963 1,053
Other financial liabilities at HoAth < il 2 A S A
amortised cost 224,094 135,077
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5. Financial Instruments continued)

5b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, other financial
assets/liabilities derivative financial instruments,
trade receivables, bills receivable, other receivables,
time deposits and deposits placed with a financial
institution, bank balances and cash, trade payables
and bills payable, other payables and accruals and
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial
assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Inter-
Bank Borrowing Rate (“HIBOR”) arising from the
Group’s secured bank loans.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
borrowings at the balance sheet date. For variable-
rate secured bank loans, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at
the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Company’s profit for the year ended 31 March,
2008 would decrease/increase by HK$332,000 (2007:
increase/decrease by HK$136,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its variable-rate secured bank loans.

5. @ T H o

5b. BB EBEAY B H B R BOR

A A ] 2 F g ik T EL A T {3
HMERE - HAMBEEE, A K
TR T H - R 5 IR &
FEWC R4 > Ho A RE MR K - 2 )
173 &ﬁ# BT 3R~ SRAT
AR BB MEAT R 5 BRR %
ﬁm% JFA 8 A R R B R AT 2R
ﬁ&%ﬁ %55 T RFEE IR
AR R R o T SCHS B R S
Fil T 5L R 2 L i B e o 5%
S Ja\ g 2 BUR o PR AR B % B
PeRz R B > e O B B A A7 R
PRIURE 2 1T -

TE 0

VIEY 074

A R BB R M B AR
F 2 AR IETE S A LA T T Bl & 4
B Bt s o AN 4E B7R 52 B 4 ik 2 )
8By A 5 5L R A R R AT (R
R E) 2 RAT A I o

BT

R 3022 R A AT AR A A A
H R ER AT 185 80K 2 2 I 2 Jal g i
REE - IR ERITERINS » 2
rooBa it &5 0 R EEZ AfE
G B A A BE AT o 2 1B R T
oo FHATEEEHA B ER
) =2 Jel g B T 4 P B s ek A
100 25 > A0 5 HLE R4 2
R4 B 0] e s ) o

A R 38 0 100 25§ > T
Jr A oA 5 B AE R A 2 > RI AR
HigE FEENE=ZH=+—
H 1k 4E B 2 % A 6>/ 38
332,000 # 7T (- EE-LAE © BN
W 136,000 T) > B AA
AF [ 5t L S R AT B SR A2 R R
JEL g TR E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A W B B

For the year ended 31 March, 2008 BiE _FF/NF=H = —HIFFE
5. Financial Instruments (ontinuca) 5. R T H
5b. Financial risk management objectives and policies Sb. B B 4% B H B R sk (4H)

(continued)
Market risk (continued) Tl 55 b B (7E)
Currency risk B
Several subsidiaries of the Company has foreign AN T A B B N 7 A AT A
currency sales and purchases, which exposes the WERUE o O A 2 T A TR
Group to foreign currency risk. Approximately 100% W o A S [ Y 85 5 A 5297 100%
of the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies DL4E B JEThRE B W RT(E - BbAb >
other than the functional currency of the group A S [ B R AT HEAT AT T AR
entities making the sale. In addition, the Group is also EEYEL > R mH &
exposed to currency risk through entering a number JE B o

of RMB/USD forward contracts with the banks.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency AR H B > AS£E 3 DL B
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities ZEWEEMEHAMZIRm N
at the reporting date are as follows: T
Liabilities Assets
fafi (3
2008 2007 2008 2007

“ERRNF ZEREF CRRAF ZFRLF
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
T#x T T#x Ti#or

United States dollar (“USD”) EIC 31,087 25,487 445,874 325,793
Renminbi (“RMB”) NG 5,534 6,712 2,560 6,954
Assets and liabilities denominated in USD mainly DIETHEZEEMABEEIREN
represents time deposits and deposits placed with a Tk ~ fE N4 RS A7 2 ~ o] fik oy =
financial institutions available-for-sale investment, &~ EIE 5K/ AT E 5 IR
trade receivables/payables and bills receivable, while FEREYE , AR S EE
assets and liabilities denominated in RMB mainly M EfER AL 2 EA
represented trade and other payables/receivables held W W 8 T HE R R A E T i ik
by the Group. JH o

Sensitivity analysis 1 7%

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate ZAE B EE RS E T N\ R b & AE
fluctuations of USD and RMB against the functional 5] B A o) R A ek r A\ R M 2 i 2R
currency of respective group entities, which is either VD R o H A R T B 25 T MV
HKD or RMB. As HKD was pegged to USD, the e TT 58 35 T 2 [ R B R B A K > ik
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rate of HKD FEE s T A H T R e > 4E () B e
against USD is considered insignificant and thus the 25 N7 A ARG B A M R T o

effect on group entities using HKD as their functional
currencies is not considered in the sensitivity analysis.
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5. Financial Instruments continued)

5b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 3% increase and decrease in functional currency
of respective group entities against the relevant
foreign currencies. 3% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonable possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 3% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit where the functional currencies
of respective group entities weakens 3% against
the relevant currencies. For a 3% strengthening of
the functional currency of respective group entities
against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit, and the balances
below would be negative.

5. &/ T H @

5h.

Impact of USD

ek
2008 2007
“EENE “ERELAE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x TH#IT
Profit or loss for  ZR4E% | f51H
the year 129) (21)

S5 e A B I B % SR (A1)

107 5 b g ()

B T (4E)

T R FES DR A A [ KR
ER IR & A B N R b
B 3% 2 LR E 0 3% A W)
R e S L NS = Y TN
BT 2 SR 5 36 5 8 1T g R
R e A M ) 2 5EAL o U E
S M LG LANE SHE 2 R
BAHNETEE » iR AR AT R H ik
DL WLRE R 2 3% 55 8 o |4
IE BRI & 42 B B S ) AR B O
AH B A T 5 304 5 DA B A 1
o i 45 45 19 B B T e £ A
B A e 5 3% o 519 B B i A
PR EY Y rvd-% RN R
e A -

Impact of RMB

NS
2008 2007
SRENE CRELE
HKS$’000 HKS$000
TH#T Tl
87 (7)
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For the year ended 31 March, 2008 B E —EEFAF =t—HIF
5. Financial Instruments (ontinued) Y =AY
5b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 5b. B 3’% JE BE 45 PR H OB K R
(continued) (%8
Sensitivity analysis (continued) @Wﬁﬁﬁkﬁf(

The above report is mainly attributable to the
exposure to outstanding receivables and payables at
the year end.

With respect to the foreign currency forward contract,
if the exchange rate of RMB/USD had been 3%
higher/lower, profit for the year ended 31 March 2008
decrease/increase by HK$541,000 (2007: decrease/
increase by HK$236,000).

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations at 31 March, 2008 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount
of those assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade receivables, the Group has been largely
dependent on a small number of customers for a
substantial portion of its business. The top three
customers represent over 76% of the trade receivables
and bills receivable at 31 March, 2008, which
contributed the Group’s concentration of credit risk
by geographical location in America and Europe. The
failure of these customers to make required payment
could have a substantial negative impact on the
Group’s profits and liquidity. In order to minimise
the credit risk, management of the Group has credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds and debt securities are
limited because the counterparties are banks and a
financial institution with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are reputable banks in Hong Kong.

Lﬂﬁiiﬁﬁﬁﬂimﬁik
A B A0 L R Ak I T 3 22 J

B -

AN R A A S > AR
W / 35U IE R Tt/ k3% - RIl #
B2 OBT)NE=ZH=+—HIEE
JE 2 s 5% 58 i/ 842 541,000

WL EE L /W
236,000 #:7t)
11

M35 Tk —EENFE=ZH=4—H
K RE B AT 1055 AL 45 J Al 8 A 7
ZRYE EUZ'KE @/E%xzﬂi%}%i%
JELBR 2 R RS B B R T EUE E IR
TH] 4B A o A< 4R 1 B A5 B R B 2

B o REWUIR K ﬁE@k%PZ%%
JIRGE/NBEF o« R ZFF)N\FE=
RA=Z+—H BER=%F g
F W WK T 4 76% (A 4R B 15 B
B 4 ob 2t [ 5 5 U B W) o e S
%5 AR BEAT o i A 1 A R 45 A
CNIUR=NITE 2 I LSRR §0 e
AR > AL R OLA 5 S &
HoAth B HERE T > DA E R PR IR 2 5 i
g EIRETR: b N = 9= R P N =
®A $%@&Jtﬁ@%%%ﬁ%
AR R AT e [l 4 DA DR A Al ik
Eiﬁaﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁoﬁ%ﬁ
BoARNAERES  AEEZEE
JEBgE K e PR AT

B BB R R A AE 2 AR L
AR A MBI E 85— T 5
B A P R A T 2 A R S
SRR 2 SRAT BB A o

H A 32 5 (9 75— J7 70 7 s R0 44 8RAT
BOERAT 4 R 2 AR B R A PR
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5. Financial Instruments continued)

5b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings.

The Company relies on bank borrowings as a source
of liquidity. As at 31 March, 2008, the Company has
available unutilised credit facilities of approximately
HK$123,437,000 (2007: HK$108,108,000).

The following table details the Company’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Company can be required to pay them.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

5. @ T H @

Sb. B B 4 BI R R R (4

) B 2

548 B B < B IRF - A SR
B R AR TR PR A B
ERBEFEYEE > UAFRE
P ) S5 e T R L I DR B
SR B AR R o P B
SRAT A A (8 AR DL

AN IR SRAT 16 3K 2 F E )
BaRE - A _FFENE=H
=+—H > ARXATHZEKE
A5 B4 % 75 123,437,000 %
Jo (= EE L 4FE 108,108,000 %
Jt) o

NERFAA N A Z A A R
T A K E Y o 8 IF AT A B A
i > FIURE M B B A 2 R YT
Bl Ui B (PR A 2w A g 2RI
R B ) T A o

LB B KRR 7

Carrying
Weighted amount
average Total at
effective Less than 3 months Over undiscounted 31 March,
interest rate 3 month to 1 year 1 year cash flows 2008
“ERNE
T Ardse  EHET-H
HBAE  PR=EMA SHAEA —4EY b HEAH Z Wi
% HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$000
T#7x T#x Ti#r T#r T#r
2008
Financial liabilities at  4:BbE A5 A
amortised cost
Trade payable and bills & 5 JEffZE K
payable FERT SR — 162,110 — - 162,110 162,110
Other payables HA 20 — 20,308 8,482 — 28,790 28,790
Secured bank loans —  AIEMS TR —
variable rate s 3.05 4418 9,829 20,423 34,670 33,194
186,836 18,311 20,423 225,570 224,094
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5. Financial Instruments (continued)

5. & T H

5b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Sb. B B 4 BI R R R (4

Liquidity risk (continued) R EL R ()
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) it B B S B 7 (A
Carrying
Weighted amount
average Total at
effective Less than 3 months Over  undiscounted 31 March,
interest rate 3 month to [ year 1 year cash flows 2008
“FENF
il Sg) e  =A=1-H
HRfE  DR=WA ZEAE-F —HUE it IR
% HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$ 000 HKS$000
Tt T T#x T T#x
2007
Financial liabilities at 48 E WA
amortised cost
Trade payable and bills % 5 JEfH 278}
payable FEf 34 — 102,928 — — 102,928 102,928
Other payables T 508 — 10,057 8,504 — 18,561 18,561
Secured bank loans — A EIMRITER —
variable rate 28 6.89 1,950 5513 7440 14,903 13,588
114,935 14,017 7,440 136,392 135,077
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5. Financial Instruments continued)

5c. Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

— the fair value of financial assets held and
financial liabilities issued with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid and ask prices respectively; and

— the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions.

The Group’s available-for-sale investments and other
financial assets/liabilities are measured at fair value
as detailed in notes 16 and 17. The directors consider
that the carrying amounts of all other financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements approximate

their values.

5. &

fi T EL )

Sc.

AT
IS Y 7 BT 8 2 A (B
FHIF

— PR M E R DR
R B B AR AF B AT B T
WL BT 5 58 By < B S B A
Z A FE SN LA 2 2% B R
W% HON B CH R E
K

—  CHAH R E B AR
Z - % B T B T
55 38 By (R DA B B 4 0
BN BARZ —BRARBZ
AR B B E o

AL ] 22 AT 3t B B B H A B
BEE/ARTIUATHER R
AR KRR 16 M 17 - EHEGE
oy TR f e B 5 R DA B A T
Bk 2 BT A A B R R B B
1 2 B T {E SR AR A
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For the year ended 31 March, 2008 #r _FENFE=H =A+—HILFE
. . A ~ = j
6. Business and Geographical 6. £ N Hb & oy 5
Segments
Geographical segments b 7Sy 3K
For management purposes, the Group is currently organised NG T 0 el | s A K M e
into three major geographical segments based on the [ 4338 DA EE il 2 M7 B 5 ik v
destination of shipment of products. These segments are fEE o A BT AL E W E
the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment B EE R o
information.
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenues and AT T 72 45 3] iz #h [ T 35 22 4% 25
results by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of EHER > ENRBEAEE -
the goods:
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT AW
Year ended 31 March, 2008 HE FELENF=H="1+—H
Europe America Asia Others  Consolidated
XM e i oAb b B
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000

T#x T#x T#x T#x T#x

Revenue EEH 897,473 266,145 342,372 41,835 1,547,825
Segment result iRiE 58,564 17,962 22,855 2,912 102,293
Net investment income X & UL A F4E 11,276
Increase in fair value of &Y ZENF(H

investment property Hm 4,960
Finance Costs A2 (1,052)
Unallocated corporate F BN )

expenses B (42,720)
Profit before tax I o8 i Vi ) 74,757
Income tax expense P50 BH 32 (9,885)
Profit for the year AAE RS F 64,872
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Business and Geographical
Segments ontinued)

6. SEHS N I [543 38

Geographical segments (continued)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
At 31 March, 2008

b Ik 2y 4 (4
HEhEEffR
B ENFZH =1—H

Europe America Asia Others Consolidated
e E3| e | Jo i b B
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#x T#x T#x T#x
ASSETS (3
Segment assets T iR E 279,810 82,956 74,279 14,305 451,350
Unallocated corporate K4 Ai/A A
assets GE 465,110
Consolidated total GERERE
assets 916,460
LIABILITIES s
Segment liabilities Vil 5=t 108,655 36,598 25,648 5,584 176,485
Unallocated corporate KAL)
liabilities AafE 199,148
Consolidated total GAEMAR
liabilities 375,633
OTHER INFORMATION b R
Year ended 31 March, 2008 #HE_FENF=ZH="14—H
Europe America Asia Others  Unallocated Consolidated
A ZH oW b R A
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#x T#x T#x T#x T#7x T#x
Capital additions AN 7,393 1,373 1,785 37 83,344 94,212
Depreciation SN 10,469 2,379 2,759 437 24221 40,265
Write-off of property, W -~ BiE R
plant and equipment A AR 1,254 157 243 60 29 1,743
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6. Business and Geographical
Segments ontinued)

6. SEHS N I [543 38

Geographical segments (continued)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 March, 2007

Revenue

Segment result

Net investment income
Finance costs
Unallocated corporate

expenses

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 31 March, 2007

ASSETS
Segment assets

Unallocated corporate

assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate

liabilities

Consolidated total
liabilities

I

Ve

BE AT

g & il

RIBLA F
(53

Rt A A1
BB B3

AL i ]

HE

Ao BEZA
HE

AR RERE

ff
s a R

Ao R
R

AafAR

o 4y 8 (#5)
B i
#HE_FFLF=H=1+—H
Europe America Asia Others  Consolidated
el EM s At 4 5 e
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T#T T#T T# T#T T#
619,662 194,882 221,961 35,639 1,072,144
65,665 18,606 23,979 3,611 111,861
6,012
(916)
(37,246)
79,711
(10,616)
69,095
BaREAMR
Ro-FFLE=ZHA="1—H
Europe America Asia Others  Consolidated
B e CER| oAt [ oy
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
FHT  TH#T  T#T  TET TET
203,180 49,726 65,663 13,159 331,728
376,754
708,482
68,448 21,724 19,686 4737 114,595
100,155
214,750

Annual Report 2007/2008
—RBLEERE)\EEH 67



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

A W5 3l Bk

Business and Geographical 6.

Segments (continued)

SEH5 B b 18 7 B o

Geographical segments (continued)
OTHER INFORMATION
Year ended 31 March, 2007

23 9 (A1)
bR
ME-FEFLFEZA=1—H

Europe America Asia Others ~ Unallocated ~ Consolidated

B EM G HAbd R A A

HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$000

T#T THTT TH#IT T#T T T

Capital additions AL 11,520 2,041 2,051 839 20,684 37,135

Depreciation & 8,024 3,248 2432 414 20,548 34,666
Write-off of property, ER

plant and equipment Ak AR 1,650 3,071 423 149 - 5,293

Substantially all of the carrying amount of segment assets
and additions to property, plant and equipment, for both
years were located or utilised in the PRC including Hong
Kong.

Business segments

No analysis of financial information by business segment
is presented as all the Group’s revenue and trading results
are generated from the manufacture and sale of household
electrical appliances representing the sole business segment
of the Group.

Net Investment Income

REBE_FFNFL_FFTLF=A
=t —HIRFEE > R G A EE
AR (E S W3 ~ TS e Bl 2 IR B
PR B A B (B 36 B AR

e g

S 55 ORI U7 A R 3 5y R A AT 4y
> pi A A B2 I 2 SE M AR SR AR
) o B0 I R B R RE R AR AR
LG 75 A S 1 M — SE S 0

BUE WA 1R

Interest on bank deposits RATHEERLE

Interest on debt securities BB S

Net gain on foreign currency forward I 55 %2 £ 1548
contracts

Net gain (loss) on redemption of I (] ] AL R Y

available-for-sale investments (E518) 1F 50
Net gain on financial assets designated % 48 £5 $50 /A F(H A &2 15
at FVTPL upon initial recognition T A0 A R A A

2008 2007
“RRNE CRRLE
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T#7x T
4,693 5,146
1,347 1,235

5,142 130
78 (499)

16 —

11,276 6,012

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

%A%ﬁﬁ*%m

#E _FE/NF=H="1—HILFE

8. Directors’ and Employees’
Emoluments

8. HH Mg B &

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) HHM4
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight EATEEN T84 (Z L4
(2007: eight) directors were as follows: 84 ) EHAH Z@N{ﬂz‘ﬁﬂ—F
For the year ended 31 March, 2008 BEFZZNE=H=+—HI
AR
Ms. Ms. Professor
Mr. Mr.  Cheung  Cheung Mr.  Mr. Lai Lo  Dr.Chan
Cheung  Cheung Lai Chun,  LaiSee,  Cheung Ah Ming, Chung How Total
Lun  ShuWan  Maggie Sophie Pui Leon Mau Chun 2008
R WM RER REK R RN OERX MR
y 7 p LA %t %t y A p A %) it R
HKS$’000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
T#r Ti#xr T#c Téxr T#c Téxr T  Tér  T#x
Fees e - — - — - 100 - - 100
Other emoluments LAt 4
Salariesand other  Ha: KA
benefits il 2,608 2,339 1,186 1,436 1,067 — — — 8,636
Bonus (note) EAL (i) 1,024 4,255 657 795 546 — — — 7271
Retirement benefit R {RFEF
scheme At
contributions fesk — 231 116 143 107 - — - 597
Total emoluments ~ Fl4 4% 3.632 6,825 1,959 2,374 1,720 100 = = 16,610
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

A W5 1 3l Bk

#E K ENF=H =+—HIFFEE

8. Directors’ and Employees’
EmOIHmentS (continued)

8. W IF iR B E

(@)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) HIM4 (FH)
For the year ended 31 March, 2007 BE_FZELHE=H=1+—-HI
R
Ms. Ms. Professor
Mr. Mr.  Cheung  Cheung Mr. M Lai Lo  Dr.Chan
Cheung ~ Cheung LaiChun,  LaiSee, ~ Cheung  AhMing, Chung How Total
Lun  ShuWan  Maggie Sophie Pui Leon Mau Chun 2007
R REEE REZ RENR R ORER ERK WER
i st Tt Tt bt piit B At o
HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
T#r  TEr  TEr  TEr T#Er TEr TEr TEr TEx
Fees {iE - — - — - 50 - - 50
Other emoluments  JE{iF4:
Salaries and other B LAt
benefits il 247 2,001 1,109 1,356 1,020 - - - 8,158
Bonus (note) fEAL (HF3E) 682 3,998 550 638 296 = = = 6,164
Retirement benefit R KA
scheme At
contributions (5 - 220 111 136 102 - - - 569
Total emoluments M4 3,154 6419 1,770 2,130 1,418 50 - — 1494
Professor Lo Chung Mau waived his fees of i JRE % BB W A FE B i 52 A
HK$100,000 (2007: HK$50,000) for both years. Dr. 4 100,000 % T (— F F L 4 ¢
Chan How Chun waived her fees of HK$100,000 50,000 JC) © BRF F ¥ £ W 4F
(2007: HK$50,000) for both years. JE 35 CHE LML 4 100,000 %5 T (=
FEL4F 50,0000
Note:The performance related incentive payment it - Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁl‘@fééﬁffﬁiﬂ%ﬁ]ﬂﬂ&
is determined on individual performance and REIRILIIE «
performance of the Group.
(b) EHME

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group in
2008 and 2007 were all directors of the Company and
details of their emoluments are included in (a) above.

AREMH ZFRLFE R ZETEN
GEONE TR VAT E=E A 0K 10z AN ]
BARNFIZES > HME&ERE
A (a) T -

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

9. FrisMipd %

9. Income Tax Expense

BUIASCH AL

The charge comprises:

Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated at ik A58 SR AL

17.5% on the estimated JRE R i | ol
assessable profits 17.5% w15
Current year ARAERE
Underprovision in prior years AR A 1

The PRC enterprise income tax
calculated at the prevailing rate
Current year ARAEFE
Underprovision in prior years RN N i

Deferred tax (note 25) IRAERLIE (7L 25)

Hong Kong Profit Tax is calculated at 17.5% on the
assessable profit for both years. On 25 June, 2008, the
reduction in Hong Kong Profits Tax rate from 17.5% to
16.5% was approved by the Legislative Council. The
Directors anticipate that there is no significant impact on
the Group’s results and financial position.

For both years, the profit of certain subsidiaries are subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax on a 50:50 apportionment basis.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are eligible
for certain tax holiday and concessions as an export
oriented enterprise. Under the tax holiday, certain Group’s
PRC subsidiaries are exempt from foreign enterprise
income tax for two years starting from its first profit-
making year, followed by a 50% reduction for the next three
years. Under the new Enterprise Income Tax Law starting
from 1 January, 2008, the 50% tax reduction incentive
provided to export oriented enterprise has been removed.
Starting from 2008, the statutory enterprise income tax rate
of these subsidiaries would be 25%.

o B 1 S TR B T AR A
FIEHE I BLA B AR

2008 2007
“EENE T
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x THETT
6,222 9,186
143 21
6,365 9,207
4,054 2,273

— 23

4,054 2,296
(534) (887)
9,885 10,616

B vt R A5 Bl T3 4% 8 W9 4 4 i 2 RERRL B
T B 2R 17.5% 51 5 o it ZFF )\AF
ANHZ+HHH > EGEERNEE
T A5 B 17.5% £ 16.5% © & 2 18
B A S MR LR A K2 -

CEEN ) CFFLRCOEEL/
WL O A 2
FU TR 1 14 50 © 50 b 5
fi -

7 2 [ v B Y o A R AE B A
AN A R =R — RS R B
HE - MRIEA B ML R ERNEE W
FRBL - W HAR 2 = FEH/ LR
Wz h —FEFZNFE—H—HE >
WFE LA G TIHEAEMN
EREECEBR o B FF/\FH
i > SZ5E M A 2k e A 2 AT A B
F525% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March, 2008

A W5 1 3l Bk

9. Income Tax Expense (continued)

9. Frishi b S

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated income statement as

follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
17.5%

Tax effect of income that is not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of offshore manufacturing
profits on 50/50 apportionment basis

Effect of different tax rates in the PRC

Underprovision in prior years

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Others

Tax charge for the year

AR BT 2 B IE IR AT A A i a R

N Z BB A AR
2008 2007
e 2 TS CRT LA
HK$’000 HK$°000
T Fitor
W il i ) 74,757 79,711
FASBALFLZ 17.5%
13,082 13,949
SHEJE A0 2 WA 36 B R0 24
2 (839) (1,303)
AR ek . B 57 36 I AR Vi A
2 833 646
A HERR 2 B TE s R B T 2 — 852
i Rk B 5 2 AR 50 ¢ 50
FO A5 S A S o T R (2,190) (2,994)
PRI 7 1A v B A (] o 2R 2 2 (346) (654)
R A BN SR AR 143 44
i 2 AT A R 2 B IE s 18
(643) —
At (155) 76
AR EERLIE S 9,885 10,616

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 55 W B B

For the year ended 31 March, 2008 BiE _FF/NF=H = —HIFFE
o YA
10.Profit for the Year 10. 7 4 B Vi A
2008 2007
ZREMNE e S S
HKS$’000 HKS$000
T#C THETT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after AS4E FEJis A 2 305 (5FA) T 41
charging (crediting): K IH -
Staff salaries and allowances JEEBE AP e sl 208,015 140,499
Contributions to retirement benefits BARAEFFIEIER > fIkRE
schemes, net of forfeited amount of W2 13K 38,000 5 T
HK$38,000 (2007: HK$69,000) (—FELAE 169,000 70) 18,382 7,741
Total staff costs, including directors’ B TR (B I 4)
emoluments 226,397 148,240
Release of prepaid lease payments it S FELASTFEL B 0 716 549
Auditor’s remuneration A% BT T < 2,080 1,757
Depreciation of property, plant and W - ME BT
equipment 40,265 34,666
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEYIZE - BB K2
plant and equipment 18 (2 F]) 2,203 on
Write-off of property, plant and equipment 42 ~ /5 M sX HiHH5R 1,743 5,293
Net foreign exchange losses (gains) e 2, Y A 18 (22 1)) 4,092 (3,909)
.. L
11. Dividends 11. B
A final dividend of HK6 cents (2007: HK7 cents) per HRERRE RS FR e (=
share has been proposed by the directors and is subject FEALAF - THAL) o HLIEK BB
to approval by the shareholders in the Annual General AR Jeet SR K b A e A ]
Meeting. (3%
The final dividend will be paid on 10 September, 2008 REARE A A —FF)NFESLH + HIK
to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of By )N FNH 4+ HHZH7R
Members of the Company on 25 August, 2008. AR w4 i 2 R
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For the year ended 31 March, 2008 #E FENF=H = —HILFE
: JL
12.Earnings Per Share 12. 5 I B A
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on T AR T 5 S5 0 R A B A 2
the following data: =2
2008 2007
—RBENE B e S
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x ToT
Earnings for the purpose of basic B AS AT &
earnings per share Z BA| 64,872 69,095

Number of shares

JBe iy 9
2008 2007
“RBNE “FFLE
000 ‘000
r F
Number of ordinary shares for the AR AR AT S 2
purpose of basic earnings per share A i Ry B E 335,433 335,433
No diluted earnings per share has been presented for both T AT BE TR W R A 0m i 2 VA e
years as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue. TR LR ST V2 A 271 S A A 9 2 R o

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 55 W B B

For the year ended 31 March, 2008 BiE _FF/NF=H = —HIFFE

13.Investment Property 13. % EW

HKS$°000
FIT
FAIR VALUE A
At 1 April, 2006 and 31 March, 2007 A ZFEEINAEN A —H R = FELAE
=H=+—H 4,540
Increase in fair value recognised in the DSBS DN A W 2k 32 TR R
consolidated income statement 4,960
At 31 March, 2008 BoEENFE=ZA=+—H 9,500
The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31 R -FFNFER _FFLHE=NH
March, 2008 and 2007 have been arrived at on the basis of =1+—H  AEHEBEEYENNTHE
a valuation carried out on that date by RHL Appraisal Ltd., H 8 7 B3 G AR Al (L I A R AT R
independent qualified professional valuers not connected P A PR Rl HEAT AL o K AIATREE
with the Group. RHL Appraisal Ltd. has appropriate RN NEIR SR RSB & ] |
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of i 2 ) 3R AT 0 RE B o (BT AR BR
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation i 2 BUATE RS HEAT o
was arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties.
The investment property is situated in Hong Kong and held BEYEM AT A RBELN -

under a long lease. It is rented out under an operating lease. oo EWECTAEEMA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 556 B %53 4% S b sk

For the year ended 31 March, 2008 #r _FENFE=H =A+—HILFE

14.Property, Plant and Equipment 14. 902 ~ Wz Mkt

Furniture,
Factory Plantand fixtures and Moulds Motor ~ Construction
Buildings buildings machinery equipment and tools vehicles in progress Total
Wk B RE

By LhWE L Bl BRRLA R IR it
HKSO0  HKSUOO  HKSOO0  HKSOM0  HKSOO  HKSUOD  HKSOM0  HKSO0

Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt

COST A

At 1 April, 2006 R-ZZAENA-H 4374 68,093 157459 49978 111,213 8,848 — 399965
Additions iE — 631 12,212 3,598 16,471 2467 1756 37,135
Disposals/write-off hE /i - — (672) (@56 (25904) (1,639) — (28,691)
At 31 March, 2007 REFFLE=A=+—0 430 68,724 168,999 53,120 101,780 9,656 1756 408,409
Exchange adjustments SMERE — 2,089 11,550 2,963 125 782 1,001 18,510
Additions iE — 4,650 51,209 5,687 10,879 1031 207756 94,212
Disposals/write-off heE /i - = (313) 00 (2552 (%91) — (27.026)
At 31 March, 2008 R-FFNEZA=+-H 430 75463 231445 61,570 87,261 10478 3,513 494105
DEPRECIATION ik

At 1 April, 2006 R-ZZAENA—H 3,690 21,093 119,638 41,618 19438 5,351 — 2088
Provided for the year HEER 175 2,746 11,146 4678 14,464 1457 — 34,666
Eliminated on disposals/ HE / HRRSE S

write-off — — (655) G4 (20610) (1639) = (23,265)
At 31 March, 2007 REZRLEZA=t-H 3865 23,839 130,129 45,955 73,092 5,149 — M
Exchange adjustments SMEFRE = 215 6,686 2384 119 048 — 10,112
Provided for the year HEER 175 2,894 14,879 4551 16,106 1,660 — 40,265
Eliminated on disposals/ HE / HRRSE S

write-off — — (255) 135 (16915 (898) = (18,203)
At 31 March, 2008 REFENEZA=+—0 4040 27,008 151439 5,755 72,602 6,559 — 314403

CARRYING VALUES TRt
At 31 March, 2008 R-ZFZN\E=R=+—H 334 48,455 80,006 8,815 14,660 3919 28513 179,702

At 31 March, 2007 R-ZZtE=A=1—H 509 44885 38,870 7,165 28488 4507 1,756 126,180

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

A W5 1 3l Bk

14.Property, Plant and Equipment

(continued)

14. )2 ~ WUE Mg e

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

bl R IEY S - RE RS 2 T Y

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates UL T AR R B SERI A -
per annum:
Buildings and factory buildings T K TR 2 4%
Plant and machinery R B A 15%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment E =N - & 20 — 33%%
Moulds and tools FE R T E 20 — 33%%
Motor vehicles RH 20%
. = 5
15.Prepaid Lease Payments 15. TE A FH & RIH
2008 2007
“REMNE “EERLF
HKS$’000 HK$000
T#C THETT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments A8 18 TEAS A B H AL
comprise:
Leasehold land held on long lease in 7 A s 2 = HAAH B 4t
Hong Kong 9,415 9,425
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: PEAFH DVAMEE T
Medium term lease EER GV iER) 29,224 26,940
Long lease R 4,499 4,579
33,723 31,519
Total B 43,138 40,944
Analysed for reporting purposes as: Ve % 2 o0 #r
Non-current assets B & 42,392 40,395
Current assets B E 746 549
43,138 40,944

The Group is in the process of obtaining the land use rights
certificate for a medium-term leasehold land outside Hong
Kong, with a carrying value of HK$22,833,000 (2007:
HK$20,366,000) as at 31 March, 2008.

7 45 3] 1 A 3 SE B A A s DA A —
oy FR A AH 4 2 FHL B A H 2 - b i R B
i HRN ETZANE=ZA=+—HZ
W T 422,833,000 o (. EE L
4 120,366,000 #T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 55 W B B

For the year ended 31 March, 2008 #r _FENFE=H =A+—HILFE

16. Available-for-sale Investments 16. ] L HE 2 &

Available-for-sale investments comprise: ] it 2 A
2008 2007
ZREBN\AE TR
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#Hx T

Unlisted securities: FE b7 A

Debt securities fEHS LS5 55,879 47,803
Club debentures FIES 3,750 3,450
Total A 59,629 51,253

Analysed for reporting purposes as: Ve 3k 2 A

Non-current assets I E) & 55,731 46,446
Current assets B & 3,898 4,807
59,629 51,253
All available-for-sale investments are stated at fair value. T AT 2 B A FEAR
Fair values of those debt securities and club debentures R 3 55 B g e 25 2 A Su (B 40 Fll
have been determined by reference to prices provided by A B R K — T R A -
counterparty financial institution and second hand market
respectively.
The above unlisted securities represent investments in DL b JE B R 2 K B BB R RS
unlisted debt securities and club debentures issued by Ak Koo i 5 2 AN BB BT ag 4T 2
private entities. The debt securities carry interest at FE BTy o MBS AE IR 2 AR TEE)
variable rates, which is reference to LIBOR or other market 27 LIBOR s HAth Tl 35 F1) 28 > FHLp 3
rate, in some instance plus or minus a fixed rate. The & DA 22 A S i o B PR R R 5y
effective interest rate is 2.6% (2007: 2.6%) per annum. The F2.6% (—FEELF 1 2.6%) o WHE
original maturity of these debt securities ranges from one Wil 2 JREI M H i —4F 2 )\ FE AR %
year to eight years (2007: from one to six years). (ZFFLE - B —FRNE) o

Allan International Holdings Limited
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#E K ENF=H =+—HIFFEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

17. Other Financial Assets/

17. A A 7

. . . . EIZ
Liabilities BfE
Current Non-current
R FEii B
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE ZZFLFE FRA\E FZFLEF
HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
F#x T TF#x THT
Other financial assets oA Vi 5
Derivatives (not under hedge R4 T H (RAUA
accounting) Huherst)
Foreign currency forward contracts  AMNERII A4 (M7 1)
(Note 1) 562 654 = =
Financial assets designated at fair ~ FE#IBEIA T EFHZ
value through profit or loss MHEEE (7t 2)
(EVTPL) (Note 2) — _ 5,463 _
Other financial liabilities oAb # A
Derivatives (not under hedge R4 T H (RA
accounting) )
Foreign currency forward contracts  AMNEEIIAA (M7 1)
(Note 1) 963 1,053 . —
Note 1: MfaE1 -

These represent three structured foreign currency forward
contracts entered by the Group with the banks which require
no initial net investment. The total notional amounts of these
contracts are USD3,000,000 and the settlement amounts of these
contracts are determined on predetermined formula with the
banks with reference to the factors: 1) the spot rate of RMB/USD;
2) interest rate spreads of other foreign currencies. Subsequent
to the balance sheet date, all three contracts were settled and
the Group has incurred a net investment loss of approximately
HK$9,390,000.

Note 2:

These represent unlisted debt investments redeemable upon
maturity ranging from May 2009 to March 2018 with the total
principal amounts of USD700,000. The return of interest of these
debt investments are linked to specific commodity indexes. As
these investments form part of a contract containing an embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL. The directors
intended to hold these investments to their maturities therefore
they are classified as non-current assets.

The above financial instruments are measured at fair value at
each balance sheet date. Their fair values are determined based on
prices provided by financial institutions.

He A 2 | BLAR AT 7T 3L 2 = 15310 B K 5 W) 4B
PG T AN R A A - 2SS
#2244 FEHBFE K5 3,000,000 ETT o 1 i% S A
) 2 T 4 ) 4 BLER AT 278 LA IR EK i
e R E ) AR/ ED
AP BEE 2% 5 2) HoAth A 2 | 2% - iR &5 5 H
%> ZEHBETE > mMAEEDES
& 1R 1 5849 9,390,000 ¥ G ©

Htat2 .

e EENERHAE EFE— )\E=H
FI| 407 R B [w] 1T A 4 A8 %8 5 700,000 35 T 2
FELTEBRE o a5 E7 LR 2 A8 H
B 2 R A AR ORI B o RZ AR IR A R
BNGHMETLRZ GHZ —80 > k&G
EEFERIE 39S ETF 2T A A A (B E
WA ) 6 E BB RIEHRE A T EFE - #
HEBMHAZEREEHAW » %%
ENEBFERIEE -

L T L S AT F LAY A <
SUATAE TS i e A MR 2 (R B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%A%ﬁﬁ%ém

For the year ended 31 March, 2008 #E ZFENF=H = —HILFE

c A
18.Inventories 18. /75

2008 2007

“ERN\E e S S

HKS$’000 HK3$°000

T#7x T

Raw materials JEA R 72,040 59,914

Work in progress TE R 5 23,118 15,297

Finished goods RIRY 37,744 28,799

132,902 104,010

19. Trade Receivables and Bills
Receivable/Other Receivables

19. FEWSC & 5 Bk M W
=4/ HAh RGO

Trade receivables
Bills receivable

Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Other receivables

MEWS B 5 Mz
9 - R AR

oAb REWCERIR

The Group maintains defined credit policies of generally

up to 90 days. The following is an aged analysis of trade

receivables and bills receivable net of allowance for

doubtful debts at the reporting date:

0 — 90 days
91 — 120 days

0-90H
91 — 120 H

2008 2007
e = JICS BT AR
HK$’000 HKS$'000
T T#oT
215,692 134,864
74,736 53,560
(405) (182)
290,023 188,242
20,910 8,294
310,933 196,536

ALEZ LG EBOR(—REE
90 K) o DR AU E Z) iR 3 & RE ik
(FNUR IR T ) R ¥R H 2 IR B

5
2008 2007

SRR CBTLA
HKS$°000 HKS$°000

T FHTE

287,700 188,242

2,323 =

290,023 188,242

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

19. Trade Receivables and Bills 19. FEUSCE Z) Wk S B

Receivable/Other Receivables

(continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. In addition, the Group reviews the
repayment history of receivables by each customer with
reference to the payment terms stated in contracts to
determine the recoverability of a trade receivable. In the
opinion of Directors, the trade and bill receivables that are
not past due nor impaired were of good credit quality at the
balance sheet date.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$31,800,000
(2007: HK$20,788,000) which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired:
0 — 90 days 0-90H
91 — 120 days 91 — 120 H

The Company has provided fully for all receivables which
are over 180 days because historical experience is such that
receivables are generally not recoverable.

SRR/ HAM RIS IA

(%)

JA B ANAT AT % 5 A > A SR 2 A
BEEFZERERLEEFRER
FEIREH - WA ARESEFH I
AP R A R AR R B R IA
ZKCBk > LA E MR By R 2 AT U
FlfEe REEAMEREH > EHERD
Ry A B B Sl B 2 B WA B B MR
AMERZFREARRY -

7 4K [H) B i B TR R A TR T (E A
31,800,000 (= F F £ 4F :
20,788,000 %5 0) 2 EWUIR K > 3% R K
A RS H 20 B 4R
HEAE > P BRI R
] IRF > 28 & 5% 2k JE 2 AT i [ o A 45 (4]
S 40 55R % S5 K E R A AT AT S A o

. 1) J01 L Sl 90 3 1 2 IR WA B2 o R TR AR
B

2008 2007
“EFME CERLE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T TIT
29,477 20,788
2,323 —
31,800 20,788

PE A A8 By > A A IR 180 K 2 B Uk
FRTEE A AT (] > AR 2N ] R T i
B 2 2 ME SR TR A H 2 e A5 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008
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19. Trade Receivables and Bills
Receivable/Other Receivables

(continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year R
Write back of impairment losses 12 ] L e 5 BRI
recognised on receivables WE 1R
Impairment losses recognised on
receivables wRIERY AN C RN i
Balance at end of the year R HEER

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of HK$224,000 which have delinquent in
payments. The Company does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

The Group does not hold any collateral over other
receivables. The Group has not provided for impairment
loss as the directors assessed that the balance will be
recovered base on their settlement records.

20.Time Deposits and Deposits
placed with a Financial
Institution/Bank Balances and
Cash

(@) Time deposits and deposits placed with a
Financial Institution

Time deposits placed with banks TR ERAT 2 E A AE K
Deposits placed with a financial T 4 BHE RS 2 A7 3k
institution

Time deposits and deposits placed with a financial
institution carry floating interest rates with effective
interest rates ranging from 1.27% to 5.70% (2007:
2.32% to 5.26%) per annum.

19.

MR 2 IRk SR
SRR/ HARE NSRRI

20.

(78)
HR B 2 % )
2008 2007
“RENE ZERLAF
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#x TH#TT
182 411
— (229)
223 —
405 182

A SR B A s 11 A (R i B K
4 %A £ 224,000 #5 T B HE R E S -
AR ) Sl 4 i % 5 A A A AT AT

=]
HH ©

A A3 0 S 0 sl A R AR S A A A AR
R o T 3 O WSCRRRT Bk A 4 4
AR AT WS [a] > oA B2 1) 7 28 ol 5% < K
TELAF: s (E A PR A -

IS AER S
HEME2 172 / 4R 175
BT

(a) REMAKAAR IR S BERE Z2 Ar K

2008 2007
“EFME CERLE
HKS$’000 HKS$000
T Tt c
64,933 59,170
26,858 32,978
91,791 92,148

TE WA AE FORAF 1 4 A 2 77 3k
AR R ERBEARIEFE > FE
HEEH1.27% £5.70% (—“FEEL
41 2.32% F 5.26%) °
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20.Time Deposits and Deposits

placed with a Financial
Institution/Bank Balances and
CaSh (continued)

20. E X7
WRIE 2 73K
B 4517 0

JORIAT 7 2 il
/ $AT B

21.

(b) Bank balances and cash
Bank balances carry interest rate at prevailing bank
savings rates ranging from 0% to 2.50% (2007: 2.35%
to 2.63%) per annum.

Trade Payables and Bills
Payable

(b) BATHfEMBLE
RITHEAA R E BN MEMER
sTEHEE0% £2.50% (—FF
B4 1 2.35% % 2.63%) °

21. FEAT & 5 B M EAS

S5

All trade payables and bills payable were aged within 90
days for both years.

22.Secured Bank Loans

WM AELSE H o r A AT 5 R
B EAT SR PR HR I 1 15 90 KA o

22. SRATH M E K

Secured bank loans, with carrying

SRATA IR > R

amount repayable: A AR R AR
Within one year —4EN
In the second year BN
In the third year E=FR
In the forth year VAN

Less: Amount due within one year
shown under current liabilities

The bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry
interest ranging from 1-month HIBOR + 2.5% to 3-month
HIBOR + 2.5% (2007: 1-month HIBOR + 2.5% to 3-month
HIBOR + 2.5%) per annum, thus exposing the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk.

W IIRM B B
—AE AR SR

2008 2007
—FFNF —EREBLAE
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
TET T T
13,439 6,771
11,476 3,969
8,279 2,004
— 844
33,194 13,588
(13,439) (6,771)
19,755 6,817

ﬁﬁﬁ KA H A R R R 2SS
$ -7 W SR AT IR FE AT B m 2.5 %
1W%£§%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂs%
zﬁﬂﬂziiﬁﬁréﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
PrEN2.5% (— M H) £ & RITH 2
WEA+2.5% (ZMH) ) R% > HAEE
BB A B A R 2 R o

Annual Report 2007/2008
B LEE 22/ /UeeR 83



A W5 1 3l Bk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

23. Share Capital 23 A

24,

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Authorised: LR
At beginning and end of the year T AEAT) % A 4 5
Issued and fully paid EEAT MR AR
At beginning and end of the year TN AT I A Ak By

Share Option Scheme

AT {E 0.10 ¥ 0.2 438 A

2008 & 2007 2008 & 2007
“EENR ZEZENRK
—FZL —ZEL
Number

of shares HKS$’000

s A3 T
600,000,000 60,000
335,432,520 33,543

24 1 B RE RT3

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) adopted on 20 August, 2002 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees, the directors and employees of the Company
may, at the discretion of the Company’s directors, be
granted options (the “Options”) to subscribe for shares in
the Company (the “Shares”) at a price determined by its
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which
must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, and the number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time.

WEAAFAR FZ_FNH _TH
Ak WS E (T MRt &1 1) -
AR ) G ] B R TR
N B S A 2 AT E T R B
DIGBEE AR A Ay B Eh EE
o i MR E R R A = 2 B
o) B A B A R

(ZERZ 5 H) Z Wi 8 (DA i B #
TR B HE) 5 (i) B S B AR
i A HORT AL 22 5 B 2 3T
8 (CAME 3 BT H R R Pl 5 25 4B ) 5 ]
(iii) B AR A

WA A F R B HE e > AT AR
5% P M T ) B AT 2 A MO 15
A YE R A AN R AT ] 2 3%
FTREAS 2 10% > B 34T By BT (W
SN A A Fo 6 2 AR 2 ) A AR 0 ] 2
BATIAZ 1% -
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+‘~7T

# 2

FENF=HA=A—HILFE

24. Share Option Scheme (ontinued)

25.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from the date of its adoption. Options granted must be
taken up not later than 28 days after the date of grant. A
consideration of HKS$I is payable on acceptance of the offer
of grant of an option. An option is exercisable on the date
when the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end
in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant
of the options.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the
Scheme.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
year and prior years:

At 1 April, 2006 /2 S/
Credit to the consolidated income F} AZANAE & 45

statement for the year (note 9) (M17E9)
At 31 March, 2007 i =2 ok 3
=H=+—H
Charge (credit) to the consolidated 113 (5 A) AR 4EFE4E & Ik
income statement for the year i % (H17#9)
(note 9)
At 31 March, 2008 RFEFNE
=H=+—H

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets arising
from tax losses of HK$3,903,000 (2007: HK$7,576,000) due
to the unpredictability of future project streams. All tax
losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

4. JE BEREET )

257k

S I MEE ) ) A R AT KO0 2 18 A T
e HEA R HE s 104E - ER T2
JBEHE W0 JE NPT 1% 28 K IN RS > ZH AT
17 JCFE £ 52 BL W B HE 2 A8 - 723
T A TT B R AT > % U AT R 4R
B B IR B4 B R ET > AR AT A
5 DL S 1598 A 432 1 I P I A R &
10 4 o

I FCHE R ) A R LA Sl AR T R
S

JER T

N B B AN A KA A EL TR RR
TR SiE B VE A DA e b > s

Fair value
changes of Accelerated
an investment tax
property depreciation Total
BEYIR T
ARt L] B b B
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
T TF#oT T#T
681 13,799 14,480
— (887) (887)
681 12,912 13,593
868 (1,402) (534)
1,549 11,510 13,059

A 42 [ NI 4 R TR AR AE BT A > R
[Rl 70 4 5 T8 51 2% 040 3,903,000 s oG
—ERELAF 7,576,000 % 70) 2 B IH
e 18 2 2B R AR Uk R AR R o T A Bl IH
T 4 T 4 P A 4 o o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ey F’f a%ﬁﬂ:%liﬂ

For the year ended 31 March, 2008 #E ZFENF=H = —HILFE

26.Related Party Disclosures BLA BHE AT 5 2

Ee

Rental expenses paid or payable by the Group to the related
parties are as follows:

Allan Investment Company Limited AR A A R A

Income Village Limited A TR
Fair Pacific Limited i N FR 2 ]
Mr. Cheung Pui JR¥E e

Certain directors of the Company have beneficial interests
in Allan Investment Company Limited, Income Village
Limited and Fair Pacific Limited. Mr. Cheung Pui is a
director of the Company.

27. Compensation of Key

Management Personnel

ALEH O A SR B ST R SIA
B AL

2008 2007
“RBME CFRLE
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T Ttk i
900 900

204 204

340 340

318 303

1,762 1,747

AR EIE G EH R B A RA
A~ BT R R Rl B R A R
AR BIR o REESEAERA LA ZHE
* o

B TS 2 S T

There is no key management personnel other than the
directors of the Company. Details on the directors’
emolument is set out at note 8.

The remuneration of directors is recommended by the
Board and determined by the Chairman having regard
to the performance of individuals, market trends and
conditions with a view to retain and motivate executives to
purpose the Group’s operation.

BRALNE 2 EF - WA HAL T
EHRE o A B 2 w5 R
8 o

EHEZME MR B TR - W
S E B G UL > S R AR Il e
RS @k > BRI RAEE AT BN
BB RHEEMT] -

Allan International Holdings Limited
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28.0Operating Lease Arrangements

28. /B AL Pk

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid during 7S 4F J& 5t & 35 FH 49 ) 2 2 B A&

the year under operating leases in FHAA K
respect of rented premises

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year —4E N
In the second to fifth year inclusive B FEEAAEN
(B EMFEIEN)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for
rented premises. Leases are negotiated for a term of three
years and rentals are fixed throughout the lease period.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year, net of
negligible outgoings, was approximately HK$204,000
(2007: HK$188,000). The property held has a committed
tenant for the next year.

AR B Ry 7R LA
2008 2007
= 22%: —ERAE
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
T FIET
1,796 1,774

A& H > A 52 AT W) 36 2 A AL
[|] 4685 8 AL 40 T 75 S AR 20 45 fi 1K B A A
HZRIEMT

2008 2007
“RRNE CFELE
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T-#C Fi#IL
1,841 1,786
1,970 928

3,811 2,714

BEMRANTIEYEES 2 HE - M
R4 = AR 21249 0 PR i 7o B fe] R LAY
WMmz s -

A 2y HALA

AR > FH Y WA K 5 204,000
WG (CFEFLAE ¢ 188,000 #50) © i
REFRDECHMS -
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28.0Operating Lease Arrangements

(continued)

28. B KL P a0

The Group as lessor (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with
the tenant for the following future minimum lease payments
under a non-cancellable operating leases:

Within one year —4EN
% AEN

In the second year

29.Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for

AR A 2 IR (450)

REFEH > AEBCHEHFTEAN
A AR A o T AR A B A i A
EHIF -

O 4 2 B AR R I {5 30 R it

but not provided in the consolidated HEMBEHREENREEY

ERY NS

financial statements in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Capital expenditure authorised but not T #tHEH R & &) 2 EAKIE A

contracted for in respect of property,
plant and equipment

30.Pledge of Assets

E B V& ]

2008 2007
SRBAE CFELE
HKS$’000 HKS$000
T Tt
379 173
348 —
727 173

29. AR
2008 2007
SRBAE FFLE
HKS$’000 HKS$000
T FibTE
42,107 4,206
128,220 169,868
170,327 174,074

30. G fE

The Group has pledged certain prepaid lease payments
and buildings having carrying amounts of approximately
HK$9,293,000 (2007: HK$9,303,000) and HK$171,000
(2007: HK$306,000) respectively, to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

A 4L E O OHK IR m O E S A A
9,293,000% Jo(— F F L 4F:
9,303,000 ¥#575) & 171,000 5 0 (2
T L4 306,000 8 T) 2 A T HEA
ERIERET > DIESAREHER 2
— M ERA TS B KA o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

31. Retirement Benefits Schemes

31 3R RAE A 5T

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong participates in
both a defined contribution scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) in December 2000. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of independent trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from
employees of 5% of their salaries. The employers will
contribute based on the monthly salaries of employees
according to the following schedule:

7 Wi 2 W 2 B T E R KR
B AR e SR AR R B A B ik
((~EEF#H D RER _FTFE
+‘H&i%ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁAWW2ﬁ
il P i w8 ([ A et &1 1) - 5%
B EEEALEERE AR
A B A E A% RE N BT 4 i 2 5L
ERH -

2mMAEEsEZRE - 51 %5
A \Z 5% o 1B AR TR LT R AT
B H 2 Btz o

Rate of
Number of completed years of service contribution
56 S0 K 5 41 81 Pk &
Not more than 5 years DR LA 5%
More than 5 years but not more than 10 years ZNTAEEAZ N 10 4E 7.5%
More than 10 years Z N4 10%

The employees are entitled to the full benefit of the
subsidiaries’ contributions and accrued returns after
participating in the ORSO Scheme for 10 years or more,
or at an increased scale of 30% to 90% after participating
in the ORSO Scheme from 3 to 9 years respectively.
Where an employee leaves the employment prior to
becoming fully entitled to the employer’s contributions,
the excess contributions are forfeited and the employer
may utilise the forfeited contributions to reduce its future
contributions. At 31 March, 2007 and 2008, the Group has
no material unutilised forfeited contributions in the ORSO
Scheme which may be used to reduce the Group’s future
contributions.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged
18 to 65 and with at least 59 days of service under the
employment in Hong Kong. Contributions from employers
and employees are 5% each of the employee’s relevant
income. The maximum relevant income for contribution
purpose is HK$20,000 per month. The employees are
entitled to the full benefit of the Group’s contributions
and accrued returns irrespective of their length of service
with the Group but the benefits are required by law to be
presented until the retirement age of 65.

ZIMAEEFEWMTFE2ER > W&
A M A T A R B 2 AR
HAZFE > HSMEELH3EF »
& B % = H30% £ 90% 1§ £ 2 it 3%
B o W B R RE S A EB 4R £ At
AT AR > B2 R O T R o T AR
ETL%%&WZM,WMHQEH
2 BE TT LR O TE)N\E
=H=+— Hm ¢¢@&ﬁikﬁ
WAt kAT M 036k B 7% M A 43 kv

58 R 4w B Rt T 18 & 65 K % IR
REBRDSOHZIEE SN - AREH
KR B8 BRI B 2 A BA BE
5% 2R o B E > ARAL
1 BR A4 H 20,000 #5 5T o A Fi H R AR
£ E 2 RG> 8 BT G A4

é%ﬁﬁLHﬁﬂ@ﬁ AR 5 1
Bl > A B A 25 4 07 B 2 BRI 65 5%
J7 ] SEEL o
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31.

Retirement Benefits Schemes

(continued)

31 AR IR A FH ] 0

32.

The employees of the subsidiaries operating in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. The contributions for
the scheme in the PRC are made based on a percentage of
the average salary as advised by the relevant authority in
the PRC. The contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they became payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme. The
subsidiaries operating in the PRC also contributed to a local
municipal government retirement scheme for all qualified
employees in the PRC. The employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at the
rates specified in the rules.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement schemes in the PRC is to make the retired
contributions under the schemes. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years.

Balance Sheet of the Company

w18 ff JBS 2 R 2 M B 7 B2 0 e 5
BN E A 2 i OB IRAR A FHE o 8
B 2 R # T 9AR BE P EA B R R B
HE T TE A G Er Ak o fit
OSSR RAFNER > FAREF
SR R ) 2 A6k 91 Lk RO 2 HE A o
o o) R 2 ) 2 {3t i [ BT AR AR AR A
At S ERBEINE T o EEKES
BB -

Wb 7 A 4R 1 i — 5 TR IfE 2 B AR
A o WA R ST AR BRI 2 e
RHBEEK

RARNFZEREARE

Non-current assets FE L Eh A
Current assets T
Current liabilities E) AR
Net current assets it B R E
Capital and reserves B R At

Share capital JeA
Reserves (note) s (ML)

2008 2007
SEFME CERLE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T Tt
105,346 91,147
287,840 262,287
165,273 102,446
122,567 159,841
227,913 250,988
33,543 33,543
194,370 217,445
227,913 250,988

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

32.Balance Sheet of the Company NRANF 2 EEAER

(continued) (48)
Note: Mzt -
Reserves itk f
Capital Investment
Share redemption Contributed revaluation  Dividend  Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total
JiA %
ok BmES  SOARR  EEEE  REENE  RARE R
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T T Tt T Tk T#r Tir
At 1 April, 2006 REFZNENH—H 109,884 793 28,229 (6,146) 20,126 93,475 246,361
Loss on fair value changes of A E A A TE S
available-for-sale investments B2 AR R i
and expense recognised directly v 53
in equity — — — (450) — — (450)
Profit for the year AEEREH| = — = = = 1,723 1,723
Total recognised (expense) income  A4EFEE iR (7 1)
for the year A — — — (450) 1,723 1,273
Transfer to dividend reserve YN8 — — — — 23,480 (23,480) =
Dividends recognised as AL B
distributions - - - — Q0126 (10063)  (30,189)
At 31 March, 2007 REZERLE=A=1—H 109,884 793 28,229 (6,596) 23,480 61,655 217,445
Loss on fair value changes of A E R T A
available-for-sale investments B2 R A A i
and expense recognised directly Y 53
in equity — — — 6,232 — — 6,232
Profit for the year NG — — — — 7,590 7,590
Total recognised income for the year ~ ALEFEEHEAIA — = = 6,232 = 7,590 13,822
Transfer to dividend reserve A B — — — — 20,126 (20,126) =
Dividends recognised as OB B AR
distributions _ _ _ — 3480) (B4 (36897)
At 31 March, 2008 REEZNE=A=1—H 109,884 793 28,229 (364) 20,126 35,702 194,370

—

Ex
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

33 AN A 2 F

33. Particulars of Principal

Subsidiaries NIl
Particulars of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries as W oEEELE R FEENE=H
at 31 March, 2007 and 2008 are as follows: =+—H  KAEZEEMKE AT R
HaF -
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation paid share capital
or registration/ or registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations 2008 and 2007 Principal activities
o KR
s 3 B i JBeAAS ok W A
Fi I 2> v 45 1% BRI CEBNERFRLE BEEH
Allan Electric Mfg., Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of Manufacturing and
o fif HE S R A FR A A il HK$10 each and 50,000 trading of household
non-voting deferred shares electrical appliances
of HK$10 each A RSB R A AR
100 AR BT EL 10 #7022
288 1B K2 50,000 i %
TI{E 10 ¥ 70 2 SEH
HRAE A
Allan International Limited *  British Virgin Islands/ 55,000 ordinary shares of Investment holding
Hong Kong HKS$1 each Eira<eidile
R LRER /B 55,000 RAFIREE 1 T2
B
Allan Mould Manufacturing Hong Kong/PRC 100 ordinary shares of Manufacturing of plastic
Limited HH /o HKS$1 each injection moulds
Sof T SUE A RA 100 g HI{E 1 T2 AT BB AR,
s
Allan Plastic Mfg., Limited Hong Kong 3,005 ordinary shares Property holding and trading
g BB A PR F i of HK$1 each of household electrical
3,005 BB I HE{E 1 T2 appliances
2 R W 3 KOS B R e T 7R
Allan Toys Manufacturing Hong Kong 270,000 ordinary shares Inactive
Limited R of HK$10 each TS
B A B AR A PR ] 270,000 B4 /5 T EL
10 #8702 4 i
oo L2ERLE (FN) PRC* Registered capital of Manufacturing of household
AR A ] USD10,000,000 electrical appliances
L4 10,000,000 %78 AEEZEEEAS

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

334N T ) 2 R BB
N )

Ro-EELER BTN
S H o AL 2 R AR

33. Particulars of Principal
SUbSidiarieS (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries as
at 31 March, 2007 and 2008 are as follows: (continued)

BT ()
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation paid share capital
or registration/ or registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations 2008 and 2007 Principal activities
CEAT R
R A RE JBeAR sk k¥ A
Fib s 2 ) 44 1% CES “RFNERRRLE BERE
S5 T2 () A IR 7 PRC* Registered and fully paid Manufacturing of household
w capital of HK$50,000,000 electrical appliances
GRS ViR <N A R RETE A
50,000,000 # 7t
Artreal Manufactory Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of Trading of household
Sk LA RAH ERTE HKS$1 each electrical appliances
2 g T 1 #E T2 REGH AR AL TE 2w
e B
Conan Electric Manufacturing Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of Trading of household
Limited i HKS$1 each electrical appliances
JRf R EA R AT 2 A T (B 1 T2 REGH A HE TE A
gl
Electrical Investments British Virgin Islands/ 1 ordinary share of USD1 Inactive
Limited Hong Kong 1 IEHEE 1 ET2 I SEHS
PR LR ) B SRl
Ever Sources Investment Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of Property holding
Limited itk HKS$1 each EEREE7/ES
LA R A 100 A R IH 6 1 #5022
Global Express (HK) Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding
Limited s HKS$1 each BE K
e (i) AR A F 2 B B EI{E 1 #E T2
Great Yield Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary shares of Investment holding
RIEARAF ik HKS$1 each BOE R
1 Bt i e 1 s Tz
W

— i

FZEF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2008

33 AN A 2 F

33. Particulars of Principal

Subsidiaries (ontinued) NI
Particulars of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries as W EELELE _FE/)NFE=H
at 31 March, 2007 and 2008 are as follows: (continued) =+—H  XAFZEEMEAFFE
BT ()
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation paid share capital
or registration/ or registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations 2008 and 2007 Principal activities
T KR
R AR e JBeAR sk k¥ A
FH I 2 ) 44 % GCEZE TRRMNER RERLE REEH
B i T e PRC * Registered capital of Manufacturing of household
HIRAF] i HK$2,800,000 electrical appliances and
1 i & 7 2,800,000 # T plastic parts
e R RE TR A B BB R
HGE BB EREEAR  PRC’ Registered capital of Manufacturing of household
] i HK$70,000,000 electrical appliances and
it i & 7% 70,000,000 #5 7T plastic parts
e R RE TR i B BB R
Karan Electric Manufacturing ~ Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of Trading of household
Limited s HKS$1 each electrical appliances
2 ff B S AT PR 100 A A HI{E 1 #5702 RESH AR B2 TE A
8
Ngai Shing (Far East) Plastic =~ Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of Development of moulds
& Metalwares Factory s HK$10 each and 54,000 and trading of precision
Limited non-voting deferred shares components
B () B B of HK$10 each BHEES L I S BN
ARAT 100 A BCIA B 10 #5022 Joif
A8 I K 54,000 A M
T {EL 10 ¥ 70 2 ME4 52
RAC Ay

Progress Associates Limited *

British Virgin Islands/

1 ordinary share of USD1

Investment in securities

Hong Kong 1 A 1 3602 ik BHRE
PR ) B
Southern Well Holdings Hong Kong/PRC 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 Property holding
Limited * Fits / each ESREE7/E S
B AR A FR A A * 2 A IR E{E 1 #5 T2
S 3 P
-4 Jie

Allan International Holdings Limited
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33. Particulars of Principal
SUbSidiarieS (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries as
at 31 March, 2007 and 2008 are as follows: (continued)

33 RN 2 B E
NG

RoFRLER FENE =N
St—H o ARTZREHEA AR
T ()

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation paid share capital
or registration/ or registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations 2008 and 2007 Principal activities
ST KR
s 3 B i JBeAR sk k¥ A
Fib I 2 il 4 % GCEZ R “ERMNERFRLAE BEESEH
Total Profits Limited British Virgin Islands/ 2 ordinary shares of USD1 Investment holding
Hong Kong each POE R
WEE LS /B 2REE 1 Rz EE
Warran Electric Manufacturing Hong Kong/PRC 100 ordinary shares of HK$1  Provision of
Limited FH /P each sub-contracting services
2z ffy B R E A BR A7 100 B ME 10T SR E AR 2 B
8
Warran Electric (Macao Macau Quota capital of Inactive
Commercial Offshore) Co. &[] MOP100,000 Wi 2
Limited FiC 45 7K 100,000 71 2
2z ffy (P9 e 2 7 SE AR )
AR
Well Sincere Investment Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 Investment holding
Limited * s each BOE TR
AWBE AR 7] * JSctE T R 1 s T
e
o Direct subsidiaries BAEMH B A T
# Wholly foreign-owned enterprises # 2B A E A

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the year.
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Financial Summary

S5 1B 2

The following table summarises the results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the five years ended 31 March, 2008.

TERAAEHBE _FFNE=ZH=+—
H AR T AR 2 360 - B A -

For the year ended 31 March,

REZ) =4

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
CRENAE CFBLE BBRNFE BT AFE ZEPE
HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T THs T THs T THs T THs T

(Restated)

(FE%1)
Revenue R 1,547,825 1,072,144 819,986 793,435 833,427
Profit before tax R B 6 A 74,757 79,711 43,626 40,383 53,960

Taxation TiIH (9,885) (10,616) (6,487) (4,792) (8,070)
Net profit for the year A IS R R A 64,872 69,095 37,139 35,591 45,890
As at 31 March,
=Z=H=+—H

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
CEEBNAE CERBFLAE CFBARF EFEFAF CEFRNF
HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T T T T T

(Restated)

(FE31)
Total assets B Al 916,460 708,482 611,658 608,270 605,712
Total liabilities B fESE 375,633 214,750 157,275 156,791 164,149
Net assets EEFE 540,827 493,732 454,383 451,479 441,563

Note: The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has
issued a number of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January, 2005. Financial information
for 2005 has been restated for these new and revised policies in
accordance with the transitional provisions. Financial information
for earlier years have not been adjusted to take into account of the
effect on the adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs as the
directors considered that it is not practicable to do so.

fiat - BEGFMIA G AL IHR —FF N
A B ZRE e RS
I B A AT A W B A YRR o &
T AR 2 B Rt e A R % AR A
1SR T AR 0 U A0 SCEE 8] > DAAE B4R
2 B 5 R0 4R S PR A UM AR 4 e R A

W17 o T R AR

A AR

B JRUIR By SR 2 0 BRI R PR K
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